

86, Sept. 1

STATE OF MINNESOTA

STATE REGISTER

4

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION—DOCUMENTS DIVISION

RECEIVED

SEP 02 1986
LEGISLATIVE REFERENCE LIBRARY
STATE CAPITOL
ST. PAUL, MN. 55155



Legislative Reference Library
Zona DeWitt
645 State Office Bldg
INTEROFFICE

Monday 1 September 1986
VOLUME 11, NUMBER 9
Pages 369-416

STATE REGISTER

The *State Register* is the official publication of the State of Minnesota, containing executive orders of the governor, proposed and adopted rules of state agencies, official notices to the public, state and non-state public contracts, grants, and supreme court and tax court decisions. Judicial notice shall be taken of material published in the *State Register*.

Volume 11 Printing Schedule and Submission Deadlines

Vol. 11 Issue Number	*Submission deadline for Executive Orders, Adopted Rules and **Proposed Rules	*Submission deadline for State Contract Notices and other **Official Notices	Issue Date
9	Monday 18 August	Monday 25 August	Monday 1 September
10	Monday 25 August	Friday 29 August	Monday 8 September
11	Friday 29 August	Monday 8 September	Monday 15 September
12	Monday 8 September	Monday 15 September	Monday 22 September

*Deadline extensions may be possible at the editor's discretion; however, none will be made beyond the second Wednesday (12 calendar days) preceding the issue date for rules, proposed rules and executive orders, or beyond the Wednesday (5 calendar days) preceding the issue date for official notices. Requests for deadline extensions should be made only in valid emergency situations.

**Notices of public hearings on proposed rules and notices of intent to adopt rules without a public hearing are published in the Proposed Rules section and must be submitted two weeks prior to the issue date.

Instructions for submission of documents may be obtained from the Office of the State Register editorial offices, 504 Rice Street, St. Paul, Minnesota 55103, (612) 296-4273.

The *State Register* is published by the State of Minnesota, Department of Administration, Documents Division, 117 University Avenue, St. Paul, Minnesota 55155, pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 14.46. Publication is weekly, on Mondays, with an index issue in September. In accordance with expressed legislative intent that the *State Register* be self-supporting, the subscription rate has been established at \$130.00 per year, postpaid to points in the United States. Second class postage paid at St. Paul, Minnesota. Publication Number 326630. (ISSN 0146-7751) No refunds will be made in the event of subscription cancellation. Single issues may be obtained at \$3.50 per copy.

Subscribers who do not receive a copy of an issue should notify the *State Register* Circulation Manager immediately at (612) 296-0931. Copies of back issues may not be available more than two weeks after publication.

Governor: Rudy Perpich

**Director, Minnesota Documents
Division:** Stephen A. Ordahl

Editorial Staff: Paul Hoffman

**Commissioner, Department of
Administration:** Sandra J. Hale

Editor: Robin PanLener

Circulation Manager: Debbie Kobold

Support Staff: Bonnie Karels

FOR LEGISLATIVE NEWS

Publications containing news and information from the Minnesota Senate and House of Representatives are available free to concerned citizens and the news media. To be placed on the mailing list, write or call the offices listed below:

SENATE

Briefly-Preview—Senate news and committee calendar; published weekly during legislative sessions.

Perspectives—Publication about the Senate.

Session Review—Summarizes actions of the Minnesota Senate.

Contact: Senate Public Information Office
Room 111 State Capitol, St. Paul, MN 55155
(612) 296-0504

HOUSE

Session Weekly—House committees, committee assignments of individual representatives; news on committee meetings and action. House action and bill introductions

This Week—weekly interim bulletin of the House.

Session Summary—Summarizes all bills that both the Minnesota House of Representatives and Minnesota Senate passed during their regular and special sessions.

Contact: House Information Office
Room 175 State Office Building, St. Paul, MN 55155
(612) 296-2146

CONTENTS

MINNESOTA RULES AMENDMENTS AND ADDITIONS

Issues 1-9 inclusive 372

EXECUTIVE ORDERS

#86-8 Providing for Assistance to Officials of St. Louis County, Minnesota 374

PROPOSED RULES

Energy and Economic Development

Governor's Rural Development Council and Rural Development Grants 375

Pollution Control Agency

Waste Tire Dump Abatement 383

ADOPTED RULES

Commerce Department

Cancellation of Commercial Policies 389
Cosmetology 389
Real Estate Broker Licensing and Education 394

Jobs and Training Department

Sheltered Workshops 394

Pollution Control Agency

Acid Deposition Control 401

OFFICIAL NOTICES

Energy and Economic Development Department

Tax Exempt Financing Issuance Authority 403

Human Services Department

End of Solicitation Period for Rules on the Determination of Payment Rates for Nursing Homes on the Medical Assistance Program 403

Revenue Department

Opinion Sought for Rules on the Ethanol Development Fund 404

Secretary of State

Vacancies in Multi-Member State Agencies 404

Teaching Board

Opinion Sought for Rules on Licensure of School Librarians; Teachers of Business Education, Computer Science, and Early Childhood/Family Education; Continuing Education; Provisional Licensure; and Teacher Examinations 405

Transportation Department

Opinion Sought for Rules and Definitions of "Significant Centers of Population and Commerce" and "Temporary Emergency Service" 405

STATE CONTRACTS

Administration Department, Procurement

Contracts and Requisitions Open for Bid 406

Energy and Economic Development Department

Request for Proposals for Agency to Provide Evaluation and Advisory Services 408
Request for Proposals for Education and Training/ Industry/Software Development Consultant 408

Human Services Department

Request for Proposals for the Development, Implementation, and Operation of Payment Error Prone Profiles for Health Care Providers 409

STATE GRANTS

Mediation Services Bureau

Applications Accepted for Funding Under the Minnesota Area Labor-Management Committee Program 411

SUPREME COURT DECISIONS

Decisions Filed Friday 22 August 1986 411

NOTICE

How to Follow State Agency Rulemaking Action in the State Register

State agencies must publish notice of their rulemaking action in the State Register. If an agency seeks outside opinion before promulgating new rules or rule amendments, it must publish a NOTICE OF INTENT TO SOLICIT OUTSIDE OPINION also.

The PROPOSED RULES section contains:

- Proposed new rules (including notice of hearing and/or notice of intent to adopt rules without a hearing).
• Proposed amendments to rules already in existence in the Minnesota Rules.
• Proposed emergency rules.
• Withdrawal of proposed rules (option; not required).

The ADOPTED RULES section contains:

- Notice of adoption of new rules and rule amendments adopted without change from the previously published proposed rules. (Unchanged adopted rules are not republished in full in the State Register unless requested by an agency.)
• Adopted amendments to new rules or rule amendments (adopted changes from the previously published proposed rules).
• Notice of adoption of emergency rules.
• Adopted amendments to emergency rules (changes made since the proposed version was published).
• Extensions of emergency rules beyond their original effective date.

The OFFICIAL NOTICES section includes (but is not limited to):

- Notice of intent to solicit outside opinion before promulgating rules.
• Additional hearings on proposed rules not listed in original proposed rules calendar.

ALL ADOPTED RULES and ADOPTED AMENDMENTS TO EXISTING RULES published in the State Register and filed with the Secretary of State before April 8, 1985 are published in the Minnesota Rules 1985. ADOPTED RULES and ADOPTED AMENDMENTS TO EXISTING RULES filed after April 8, 1985 are included in a supplement published in Spring, 1986. Proposed and adopted EMERGENCY (formerly called TEMPORARY) RULES appear in the State Register but are generally not published in the Minnesota Rules due to the short-term nature of their legal effectiveness. Those that are long-term may be published.

The State Register publishes partial and cumulative listings of rule in the MINNESOTA RULES AMENDMENTS AND ADDITIONS list on the following schedule:

Table with 2 columns: Issue numbers and cumulative listings. Includes: Issues 1-13, inclusive; Issues 14-25, inclusive; Issue 26, cumulative for 1-26; Issues 27-38, inclusive; Issue 39, cumulative for 1-39; Issues 40-51, inclusive; Issue 52, cumulative for 1-52.

MINNESOTA RULES AMENDMENTS AND ADDITIONS

NOTE: This listing includes all proposed and adopted rules printed in this issue except emergency rules and errata for this issue. Please see those sections for the appropriate rule numbers.

ACCOUNTANCY BOARD

1100.3600; .2150; .2750; .3250 (proposed) 331

ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT

1300.0200-.0700; .1100; .1300-.1500; .1900; 1305.0100; .0150; .0500; .0800; .0900; .1355; .1400; .1590; .1795; .1800; .2050; .2100; .2400; .3850; .3900; .4500; .4850; .5000; .5100; .5300; .5320; .5700; .5750; .5910; .6200; .6260; .6270; .6425; .6430; .6525; .6900; .6905; .6920; .7100; 1310.0400-.0700; 1315.0200; 1320.0100-.0400; .0600-.0675; .2001-.2035; 1340.0200-.0400; 1355.0100; 1360.0100-.0300; .0500-.1500; .1800-.2500; .2700-.3600; 4715.0100; .0420; .0510; .0520; .0810; .0820; .1215; .1420; .1510; .1570; .2560 (proposed) 251
1300.0940; .0942; .0944; .0946; .0948 (proposed) 246
1300.1150; 1305.3500; .3850; .3970; .4300; .5910; .6260; .6270; 1320.0100, s.2,3; .0300, s.1; .0700; .0710; .0720; .0800; .1500; .1800; .2500; .2600; .2700; 1360.0200, s.13; .3700 (proposed repealer) 251
1305.2050; .2100; .6200 (proposed) 295
1320.0900; .1000; .1100; .1200; .1300; .1400; .1650; .1700; .1850; .1900; .2000 (proposed renumbering) 251

ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS OFFICE

1400.8401 (adopted) 334

AGRICULTURE DEPARTMENT

1555.6840; .6850; .6870 (adopted) 335

CHIROPRACTIC EXAMINERS BOARD

2500.1000; .1100 (adopted) 134

COMMERCE DEPARTMENT

2640.0100; .1100; .1300; .1400; .1500; .1700; .2000; .3100; .3200; .3300; .3600; .3700; .3900; .4000; .4100; .5100; .5200; .5300; .5500; .5800; .5900; .6000; .6100; .6300; .6800; .6900; .7000; .7100; .7700; .7800; .7900; .8200; .8400; .8500; .8600; .8700; .8800; .8900; .9100; .9200; .9400 (adopted) 389
2640.5100, s.2,4,5,7,9 (repealed) 389
2640.5100, s.6,8 (repealed effective 1/1/88) 389
2675.2600; .2610; .2620; .2630 (proposed) 102
2700.2400; .2410; .2420; .2430 (adopted) 389
2742.0400 (proposed) 173
2791.0100 (proposed) 29
2800.0100; .1300; .1600; .1700; .1750; .1751; .1900;

MINNESOTA RULES AMENDMENTS AND ADDITIONS

.2100; .2150; .4200; .5100; .5200; .5300; .5400; .5600; .5900; .6500; .6800; .7150; .7175; .7200; .7250; .7400; .7450; .7500; .7550; .7575; .7900; .8100; .8300; .8400; .8500; .8700; .8750; .9905; 2805.0100-.0400 (adopted)	394	7500.0100, s.12,15,20,21; .0900; .1000; .1100; .1700; .1800, s.5; .1900; .2300; .2800; .3200; s.1; .3300 (repealed)	6
2800.1600, s.1,3,4,5; .5500; .6800, s.2,3; .7200, s.3,5; .9910; .9915; .9920; .9925; .9930; .9935; .9940; .9945; .9950; .9955 (repealed)	394	PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION	
JOBS AND TRAINING DEPARTMENT		7845.0100-.1000 (proposed emergency)	105
3300.1950; .2050; .2150; .2250; 2350; .2450; .2550; .2650; .2750; .2850; .2950; .3050 (adopted)	394	RACING COMMISSION	
3300.2000; .2100; .2200; .2300; .2400; .2500; .2600; .2700; .2800; .3000; .3100; .3200 (repealed)	394	7884.0120; .0130; .0160; .0200 (proposed)	128
3325.0100-.0500 (proposed)	178	7884.0130, s.2 and 3 (proposed repealer)	128
EDUCATION DEPARTMENT		PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION	
3500.1400; .3700 (proposed)	174	7950.0100; .0200; .0300; .0400; .0500 (proposed)	73
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY BOARD		REVENUE DEPARTMENT	
4360.0100; .0200; .0300; .0400; .0500; .0600; .0700; .0800; .0900; .1000; .1100; .1200 (proposed)	375	8105.0100; .0200; .0300; .0400; .0500; .0600; .0700; .9900 (repealed)	335
4410.0200; .0500; .3100; .3600; .4300; .4400; .4600; .7500 (proposed)	31	8106.0100-.9900 (adopted)	335
HEALTH DEPARTMENT		SECRETARY OF STATE	
4625.5101; .5110; .5111; .5115; .5120; .5121; .5130; .5140; .5150; .5160; .5170 (proposed withdrawn)	128	8200.5100 (adopted)	218
4705.0100; .0300; .0400; .0500; .0600; .0900; .1400 (adopted)	104	ENERGY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT	
4705.0600, s.3, i.D; .1600 (repealed)	104	8300.5000-.5006 (proposed)	125
HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY		SUPREME COURT	
4900.0010 (proposed)	177	8550.0001-.0027 (emergency)	302
4900.0381 (adopted)	6	TEACHING BOARD	
4900.1360-4900.1362 (adopted)	6	8700.0310; .3810; .5503-.5512; .6410; .7500 (adopted)	48
MEDIATION SERVICES BUREAU		8700.3800 (repealed effective 7/1/89)	48
5510.1210 (adopted)	141	8700.5400-.5406; .6400 (repealed effective 7/1/90)	48
MEDICAL EXAMINERS BOARD		TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT	
5600.2500 (proposed)	210	8860.0100; .0200; .0300; .0400; .0500; .0600; .0700; .0800 (proposed)	130
OPTOMETRY BOARD		HUMAN SERVICES DEPARTMENT	
6500.0100; .0150; .2700 (proposed)	332	9500.1200; .1206; .1209; .1216; .1222; .1258; .1260; .1262; .1264; .1266; .1268; .1270; .1300; .1302; .1304; .1306; .1308; .1310; .1312; .1314; .1316; .1318 (adopted)	134
PHARMACY BOARD		9500.1450-.1464 (proposed)	35
6800.0400; .1250 (adopted)	335	9500.1450-.1464 (proposed repealer effective 12/31/88)	35
POLLUTION CONTROL AGENCY		9500.1650-.1663 (proposed)	69
7005.4010-.4050 (adopted)	401	9500.2000-.2880 (adopted)	212
7010.0010-.0080 (adopted)	43	9500.0010; .0020; .0030; .0040; .0050; .0060; .0070; .0080; .0090; .0100; .0110; .0120; .0130; .0140; .0150; .0160; .0170; .0180; .0190; .0200; .0210; .0220; .0230; .0240; .0250; .0260; .0270; .0280; .0290; .0300; .0310; .0320; .0330; .0340; .0350; .0360; .0361; .0370 (repealed)	212
7010.0100; .0200; .0300; .0400; .0500; .0600; .0700 (repealed)	43	9525.0010; .0020; .0030; .0040; .0050; .0060; .0070; .0080; .0090; .0100 (repealed)	77
7035.8000; .8010; .8020; .8030; .8040; .8050; .8060; .8070; .8080 (proposed)	383	9525.0015-.0165 (adopted)	77
7045.0135 (adopted)	335	9525.1290 (proposed)	300
PUBLIC SAFETY DEPARTMENT			
7500.0100-.3600 (adopted)	6		

EXECUTIVE ORDERS

Executive Order No. 86-8

Providing for Assistance to Officials of St. Louis County, Minnesota

I, RUDY PERPICH, GOVERNOR OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA, by virtue of the authority vested in me by the Constitution and the applicable statutes, do hereby issue this Executive Order:

WHEREAS, the Sheriff of St. Louis County has requested assistance in the search for a rescue of a lost eighty-six year man; and

WHEREAS, the size and terrain of the search area are beyond the capabilities of local resources;

NOW, THEREFORE, I hereby order that:

1. The Adjutant General of Minnesota order to active duty on or after August 4, 1986, in service of the State, such elements and equipment of the military forces of the State as required and for such periods of time necessary to ensure the safety of our citizens.

2. Cost of subsistence, transportation, fuel, and pay and allowances of said individuals shall be defrayed from the General Fund of the State as provided for by Minnesota Statutes, Section 192.49, Subdivision 1, Section 192.51, and Section 192.52.

PURSUANT to Minnesota Statutes, Section 4.035, this Order shall be effective retroactive to August 4, 1986, and shall remain in effect until such date as elements of the military forces of the State are no longer required.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF I have set my hand this eighth day of August, 1986.



Rudy Perpich, Governor

PROPOSED RULES

Pursuant to Minn. Stat. of 1984, §§ 14.22, an agency may propose to adopt, amend, suspend or repeal rules without first holding a public hearing, as long as the agency determines that the rules will be noncontroversial in nature. The agency must first publish a notice of intent to adopt rules without a public hearing, together with the proposed rules, in the *State Register*. The notice must advise the public:

1. that they have 30 days in which to submit comment on the proposed rules;
2. that no public hearing will be held unless 25 or more persons make a written request for a hearing within the 30-day comment period;
3. of the manner in which persons shall request a hearing on the proposed rules; and
4. that the rule may be modified if the modifications are supported by the data and views submitted.

If, during the 30-day comment period, 25 or more persons submit to the agency a written request for a hearing of the proposed rules, the agency must proceed under the provisions of §§ 14.14-14.20, which state that if an agency decides to hold a public hearing, it must publish a notice of intent in the *State Register*.

Pursuant to Minn. Stat. §§ 14.29 and 14.30, agencies may propose emergency rules under certain circumstances. Proposed emergency rules are published in the *State Register* and, for at least 25 days thereafter, interested persons may submit data and views in writing to the proposing agency.

Department of Energy and Economic Development

Proposed Permanent Rules Relating to the Governor's Rural Development Council, Rural Development Grants

Notice of Intent to Adopt Rules without a Public Hearing

Notice is hereby given that the Commissioner of the Department of Energy and Economic Development with the concurrence of the Governor's Rural Development Council purposes to adopt the above-entitled rules without a public hearing following procedures set forth in Minnesota Statutes, sections 14.22 to 14.28. The specific statutory authority to adopt the rules is Minnesota Statutes 116J.961, subd. 9.

Persons interested in this rule shall have 30 days in which to submit comment in support of or in opposition to the proposed rule or any part or subpart of the rule and comment is encouraged. Each comment should identify the portion of the proposed rule addressed, the reason for the comment, and any change proposed.

Any person may make a written request for a public hearing on the rule within the 30-day comment period. If 25 or more persons submit a written request for a public hearing within the 30-day comment period, a public hearing will be held unless a sufficient number withdraw their request. Any person requesting a public hearing should state his or her name and address, and is encouraged to identify the portion of the proposed rule addressed, the reason for the request, and any change proposed. If a public hearing is required, the agency will proceed pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, sections 14.131 to 14.20.

Persons who wish to submit comments or a written request for a public hearing must submit such comments or requests to:

Lori Widmark
Governor's Rural Development Council
900 American Center Building
150 East Kellogg Boulevard
St. Paul, MN 55101
Telephone: 612/296-3993

The proposed rules may be modified if the modifications are supported by data and views and do not result in substantial change in the proposed rules as noticed.

The proposed rules do not affect small business directly.

These rules govern application procedures for the Rural Development Council Grant program. The Rural Development Grant program makes grants available to local units of government and non-profit organizations to develop innovative projects which address the needs of farmers and/or low-income rural residents.

A copy of the rules follows. Additional copies of the rules are available for review from Lori Widmark at the aforementioned address upon request.

KEY: PROPOSED RULES SECTION — Underlining indicates additions to existing rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from existing rule language. If a proposed rule is totally new, it is designated "all new material." **ADOPTED RULES SECTION** — Underlining indicates additions to proposed rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from proposed rule language.

PROPOSED RULES

A Statement of Need and Reasonableness that describes the need for and reasonableness of each provision of the proposed rule and identifies the data and information relied upon to support the proposed rule has been prepared and is available from Lori Widmark upon request at the aforementioned address.

If no hearing is required, upon adoption of the rules, the rules and the required supporting documents will be delivered to the Attorney General for review as to legality and form to the extent the form relates to legality. Any person may request notification of the date of submission to the Attorney General. Persons who wish to receive a copy of the final rules as proposed for adoption, must submit the written request to Lori Widmark at the aforementioned address.

Dated: 18 August 1986

Mark Dayton, Commissioner
Department of Energy and Economic Development

Rules as Proposed (all new material)

RURAL DEVELOPMENT GRANTS

4360.0100 DEFINITIONS.

Subpart 1. **Scope.** As used in parts 4360.0100 to 4360.1100, the terms defined in this part and in Minnesota Statutes, section 116J.951 have the meanings given them.

Subp. 2. **Agricultural.** "Agricultural" means relating to activities of establishments primarily engaged in food production, processing, sale and transport of goods and commodities classified under the industry code numbers used in the standard industrial classification code as published in the standard industrial classification manual adopted by incorporation by reference in part 4360.1200, for the following coded activities:

- A. Major Group 01-Crops;
- B. Major Group 02-Livestock;
- C. Major Group 07-Agricultural Services;
- D. Major Group 09-Fishing, Hunting and Trapping;
- E. Major Group 20-Food and Kindred Products;
- F. Group 514-Groceries and Related Products;
- G. Group 515-Farm Products Raw Materials; and
- H. Major Group 54-Food Stores.

Subp. 3. **Demonstration grant.** "Demonstration grant" means a grant for an innovative project that has potential statewide applications and meets the needs of farmers or low-income rural residents.

Subp. 4. **Enterprise development.** "Enterprise development" means the gradual emergence or expansion of new rural small businesses.

Subp. 5. **Farmer.** "Farmer" means one engaged in the production of agricultural commodities (including persons engaged in the production of fish under controlled conditions), ranchers, farm tenants, and farm laborers.

Subp. 6. **Fiscal agent.** "Fiscal agent" means any Minnesota unit of state or local government, special district nonprofit organization or public institution, employing a certified public accountant for the purpose of the agent's activities, that acts on behalf of a project sponsor.

Subp. 7. **Grant funds.** "Grant funds" means money provided by the council in the form of a demonstration grant, seed grant, or pilot marketing grant.

Subp. 8. **Grant year.** "Grant year" means the year during which the council makes grant funds available.

Subp. 9. **In-kind support.** "In-kind support" means contributions made by a project sponsor other than money, usually services, facilities, goods, or equipment, meant to supplement the grant funds awarded by the council.

Subp. 10. **Letter of commitment.** "Letter of commitment" means a written statement from an organization or individual providing matching funds in conjunction with a project application submitted to the council.

Subp. 11. **Low-income.** "Low-income" means low income as defined in Code of Federal Regulations, title 24, section 813.102.

Subp. 12. **Management assistance.** "Management assistance" means assistance provided to rural small businesses in managing the day-to-day operations of the enterprise, and as opposed to financial assistance.

Subp. 13. **Matching funds.** "Matching funds" means the share, including in-kind support, of total project costs raised by the grantee used to supplement grant funds. Matching funds may not consist solely of in-kind support but may consist solely of money from any source.

Subp. 14. **Nonprofit organization.** "Nonprofit organization" means an organization that is a tax-exempt entity under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, as amended through December 31, 1985.

Subp. 15. **Operating capital.** "Operating capital" means money or credit used by the owner of a for-profit business to pay the day-to-day operating expenses of the enterprise, such as for the purchase of goods, inventory, machinery, equipment, or other overhead costs.

Subp. 16. **Priority rural development issues or priority issue areas.** "Priority rural development issues" or "priority issue areas" means family farm and agricultural land protection, value added processing and marketing, or rural small business assistance or any combination of those issues.

Subp. 17. **Program.** "Program" means the grant-making activities of the council.

Subp. 18. **Project or rural development project.** "Project" or "rural development project" means any activity funded or to be funded by the council that seeks to accomplish one or more of the goals specified in part 4360.0300 in one or more of the priority rural development issue areas.

Subp. 19. **Project evaluation.** "Project evaluation" means a comparison between the activities implementing the work program and anticipated project results, as identified in the project application, and the actual outcome of the project.

Subp. 20. **Project promotion.** "Project promotion" means a method of informing the general public and others about project activities, including the use of appropriate media, responding to individual inquiries, mailings to appropriate groups, and reporting to the council on project activities.

Subp. 21. **Project sponsor or sponsor.** "Project sponsor" or "sponsor" means the person or entity that implements or intends to implement a rural development project, whether or not acting through a fiscal agent.

Subp. 22. **Project sponsor or fiscal agent.** "Project sponsor or fiscal agent" means, unless a contrary meaning is clearly intended, that the project sponsor is ultimately responsible for the required action and that if a fiscal agent is used, the fiscal agent is responsible to the sponsor to take the required act and the project sponsor is responsible for the same act only in the event that the fiscal agent is unwilling or unable to take the required action.

Subp. 23. **Rural.** "Rural" means places within the state other than first class cities as defined in Minnesota Statutes, section 410.01.

Subp. 24. **Rural small business.** "Rural small business" means a business entity, including its affiliates, that:

- A. is independently owned and operated for a profit;
- B. is not dominant in its field;
- C. employs fewer than 50 full-time employees or has gross annual sales less than \$4,000,000; and
- D. is located in rural Minnesota.

Subp. 25. **Seed grant.** "Seed grant" means a small initial award of funds to a project sponsor awarded to attract other grants and contributions to the project from other sources.

Subp. 26. **Start-up capital.** "Start-up capital" means money or credit used by the owner of a for-profit business to begin operating that business for the first time.

Subp. 27. **Value added.** "Value added" means the increased worth of Minnesota agriculture and forest resources that is caused by the introduction of higher cost crops into the state, or the additional processing of existing crops, livestock, and forest products that occur within a locality or the state, rather than outside of the state.

4360.0200 COUNCIL PURPOSE.

The council serves as a forum for identifying the priority rural development issues in Minnesota and developing goals and strategies for addressing those issues through the use of technical and financial resources available to the council.

KEY: PROPOSED RULES SECTION — Underlining indicates additions to existing rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from existing rule language. If a proposed rule is totally new, it is designated "all new material." **ADOPTED RULES SECTION** — Underlining indicates additions to proposed rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from proposed rule language.

PROPOSED RULES

4360.0300 PRIORITY RURAL DEVELOPMENT ISSUE AREAS AND GOALS.

Subpart 1. **Scope.** The council, through the rural development grant programs, provides grants to qualified organizations to implement rural development projects. To most effectively meet the needs of rural Minnesota, the council has established the three priority issue areas in subparts 2 to 4 and goals for projects within each area. To the extent of legislative appropriations, the council makes funds available for projects that seek to accomplish one or more of the goals in one or more of the priority issue areas.

Subp. 2. **Family farm and agricultural land protection issue area; goals.** The council's goals in the family farm and agricultural land protection issue area are to:

- A. protect the quality and quantity of the agricultural land in the state through the use of resource management practices or land use planning and zoning;
- B. promote an agricultural land protection awareness and understanding by the farm and nonfarm populations of all ages;
- C. preserve the family farm structure by enhancing the potential for increased farm income, especially for beginning farmers, through business management and other nonloan forms of assistance; and
- D. provide information and education programs that will increase the appreciation and understanding of basic agricultural production, its role in the economy, and current farm issues, by consumers, nonfarm segments of the population, members of the state legislature and congress, and other residents of the state.

Subp. 3. **Value-added processing and marketing issue area; goals.** The council's goals in the value-added processing and marketing issue area are to:

- A. research and identify new products, processes, and services to add value to Minnesota agricultural and forest resources;
- B. inform Minnesotans about opportunities and the skills required to take advantage of processes, products, growing crops, and markets that add value to Minnesota resources;
- C. provide resources to Minnesotans to act on growing, processing, and marketing opportunities through grants, matching funds, and help from state organizations and agencies; and
- D. measure project results and inform the public about the results from experimental projects.

Subp. 4. **Rural small business assistance issue area; goals.** The council's goals in the rural small business assistance issue area are to:

- A. provide technical and management assistance for rural small businesses;
- B. establish formal networks to assist rural small businesses and technical resources in rural Minnesota with information sharing; and
- C. encourage enterprise development to improve management, marketing, business skills, and availability of risk capital.

4360.0400 PROJECT START AND END DATE.

The project start date for each project is 30 days after approval of the project by the council at its annual meeting. A project sponsor or fiscal agent shall not make a contract for services or supplies before receiving written notification of funding from the council. Grant program guidelines shall be published in the *State Register* 90 days before the deadline for submission of grant applications. No grant may be made to cover a period longer than one year from the project start date.

4360.0500 FISCAL AGENT.

A project sponsor not meeting the requirements for an eligible applicant under part 4360.0800, subpart 2 or 4360.1000, subpart 2 shall use, and a project sponsor meeting those requirements may use, the services of a fiscal agent to accept council grant funds on the sponsor's behalf, pay project expenses, and prepare financial reports and the final audit. The sponsor and the fiscal agent must both sign the application and, if a grant is received, the sponsor and the fiscal agent must both sign the grant agreement. When a fiscal agent is used, the project sponsor remains ultimately responsible for the completion of the project, the proper management of the grant funds and other acts of the fiscal agent, notwithstanding any agreement between the sponsor and the fiscal agent requiring the agent to take any acts on behalf of the sponsor. The portion of fiscal agent fees directly attributable to the grant, up to a maximum of ten percent of the grant, may be included in the amount of grant funds requested from the council.

4360.0600 RESTRICTIONS.

Subpart 1. **Equipment.** The use of council grant funds for the purchase of equipment is prohibited except as provided in this subpart. A project sponsor desiring to purchase equipment with grant funds must show that equipment is essential to the implementation of the project, and that the equipment is not available for lease or rent during the grant period or that the equipment will cost more to rent or lease than to buy.

Subp. 2. **Application costs.** Grant funds shall not be used to pay any cost incurred in the preparation or submission of any grant application to the council.

Subp. 3. **Late applications.** A project application that is incomplete or received after the deadline for application will not be considered for funding in the fiscal year in which it is received.

Subp. 4. **Discussion of applications.** Council staff, council members, employees of the Department of Energy and Economic Development, employees of the State Board of Investments, and other persons advising the council or the commissioner shall not discuss a project application with either a project sponsor or fiscal agent at any time between the time the project application is submitted to the council and the time the council makes its recommendation to the commissioner.

4360.0700 APPLICATION PROCESS.

Subpart 1. **In general.** To apply for grant funds, the project sponsor and any fiscal agent shall submit a completed and signed application form to the commissioner on a form approved by the commissioner.

Subp. 2. **Contents.** A complete application consists of the following:

A. 20 copies of the completed and signed application form; and

B. 20 copies of all letters of commitment for all matching funds. Sources of matching funds and the type (for example, money or in-kind support) and amount of the funds must also be stated in the application form.

Subp. 3. **Application submission deadlines.** A completed application for grant funds shall be submitted to the council according to the following schedule:

A. Demonstration grants - the last business day of the third week in January.

B. Seed grants - the last business day of the second week in December.

Subp. 4. **Submission to regional development commissions.** A project sponsor or any fiscal agent that is a governmental unit or a public educational institution must submit one copy of the completed application form and letters of commitment for requested matching funds to the appropriate regional development commission for review and comment where a commission exists, or the Metropolitan Council, where it has jurisdiction, in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, section 462.391, subdivision 3, or 473.171, respectively, no later than the appropriate application deadline date.

Subp. 5. **Address.** Application materials must be submitted to: Governor's Rural Development Council, Minnesota Department of Energy and Economic Development, 900 American Center Building, 150 East Kellogg Boulevard, Saint Paul, Minnesota 55101.

Subp. 6. **Council review.** Within 90 days after the application deadline, the council shall complete its review and select those projects to be recommended to the commissioner for grants.

Subp. 7. **Notification.** Immediately following approval or disapproval of a grant by the commissioner, the council staff shall notify the project sponsor or fiscal agent, as appropriate, of the action taken by the commissioner.

Subp. 8. **Grant agreement.** The sponsor and fiscal agent, if a fiscal agent is used, of a project that is recommended by the council to the commissioner must sign a grant agreement that states the conditions to which the grant is subject. Upon approval of the grant by the commissioner, the grant agreement must be processed by the commissioner and the Department of Finance. The council staff shall provide a copy of the fully executed grant agreement, forms for all required reporting, and other information to the project sponsor and any fiscal agent.

Subp. 9. **Grant close-out.** At the next council meeting following receipt of the reports required by part 4360.0900, or 4360.1100, the council shall review the reports received and determine whether the project sponsor or fiscal agent has complied with parts 4360.0100 to 4360.1100 and the conditions of the grant agreement, and notify each project sponsor or fiscal agent whether it has complied.

Subp. 10. **Unexpended grant funds.** If, during the grant close-out required by subpart 9, the council determines that any grant funds have not yet been expended for project purposes, the council shall require the sponsor or fiscal agent to return the unexpended grant funds to the council. Upon request of the council, a project sponsor or fiscal agent shall return unexpended funds to the council.

Subp. 11. **Denial and revocation of grant funds.** If the council determines on the basis of a quarterly, final, or other report that a project sponsor or fiscal agent has violated or may violate a provision of parts 4360.0100 to 4360.1100 or a condition of the grant

KEY: PROPOSED RULES SECTION — Underlining indicates additions to existing rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from existing rule language. If a proposed rule is totally new, it is designated "all new material." **ADOPTED RULES SECTION** — Underlining indicates additions to proposed rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from proposed rule language.

PROPOSED RULES

agreement, or both, the council may withhold grant funds not yet released or may require the return of grant funds already released. Upon request of the council, the project sponsor or fiscal agent shall return grant funds to the council.

TYPES OF GRANTS AVAILABLE

4360.0800 DEMONSTRATION GRANTS.

Subpart 1. **Purpose.** The council, through the demonstration grant program, provides grant funds to nonprofit organizations, public institutions, units of state and local government, and special districts within the state for innovative projects with potential statewide applications that seek to accomplish one or more of the goals in one or more of the priority issue areas established in part 4360.0110. The intent of the demonstration grants program is to assist organizations unable to provide financing from their own resources or unable to obtain financing from conventional sources.

Subp. 2. **Eligible applicants.** Nonprofit organizations, units of state and local government, public institutions, and special districts within Minnesota are eligible to apply for demonstration grants.

Subp. 3. **Eligible use of funds.** The council shall consider applications for grant funds for proposed demonstration projects begun before or after the effective date of parts 4360.0100 to 4360.1100 that:

- A. will use grant funds for action-oriented, as opposed to studies or plans, components of the project;
- B. provide direct benefit to farmers, immediate farm family members, or low income rural residents of Minnesota;
- C. have objectively measurable short-term (less than 12 months) results;
- D. inform those regional development commissions or other entities referred to in part 4360.0700, subpart 4 of the existence of the project; and
- E. seek to accomplish any of the goals in one or more of the three priority issue areas related to the project.

Subp. 4. **Ineligible use of funds.** The council shall not consider an application for grant funds for a proposed project that:

- A. does not primarily serve the needs of farmers, immediate farm family members, or low income rural residents of Minnesota;
- B. will use council grant funds for physical construction or improvement of existing facilities;
- C. duplicates or is substantially similar to other programs or efforts already being made within the state;
- D. uses council grant funds to provide operating capital or start-up capital for for-profit private businesses or enterprises;
- E. has not been submitted by the project sponsor or fiscal agent to regional development commissions or other entities for review and comment as required by law; or
- F. does not seek to accomplish any of the goals in one or more of the three priority areas related to the project.

Subp. 5. **Grant limits.** A request for a demonstration grant may not exceed:

- A. \$60,000 or 70 percent of the total cost of the project, whichever is less, for the first year of a project;
- B. \$40,000 or 50 percent of the total cost of the project, whichever is less, for the second year of a project; or
- C. \$20,000 or 30 percent of the total cost of the project, for the third year of a project, whichever is less.

Subp. 6. **Continued support.** Support for demonstration projects is determined annually by the council on a competitive basis. Support for a project in the first year does not obligate the council to continue the support in a second or third year. The determination whether to continue support for a project must be based on the success of the project and the need for further grant-supported activities. A project sponsor must provide at least 15 percent of the total project cost in cash.

Subp. 7. **Letters of commitment.** Letters verifying the commitment of required matching funds must be submitted to the council at the time of application for demonstration project grants.

Subp. 8. **Criteria for application review and selection.** Demonstration project grant applications shall be reviewed by council staff, technical advisors to the council, and subcommittees as the council may direct, who shall make recommendations to the council. Applications shall be ranked by the council based upon the following factors:

- A. the extent to which the project will meet the council's issue area goals (maximum 15 points);
- B. the innovative qualities of the project, or the extent to which project results will provide new knowledge and benefits to rural residents (maximum 15 points);
- C. the potential for future project replication in other areas of rural Minnesota, or the statewide impact of the project (maximum 15 points);
- D. the merit of the project design and implementation plan (maximum 15 points);

- E. the feasibility of the project work program, budget, and timeline for completion (maximum ten points);
- F. the project sponsor's experience and ability to successfully implement the demonstration project (maximum ten points);
- G. the potential for future leveraging of other sources of funds, or the ability to become self-sufficient (maximum ten points);
- H. the proposed methods for publicizing project activities and results (maximum five points); and
- I. the level of proposed coordination with appropriate local, state, and federal agencies and organizations with expertise in the project area (maximum five points).

Subp. 9. **Deadline for release of funds.** The council shall release grant funds to the sponsor or, if a fiscal agent is used, to the fiscal agent, according to the schedule contained in items A to C and the sponsor should plan expenditures with the following deadlines in mind:

- A. The council shall release the initial 40 percent of the total grant funds upon execution of the grant agreement.
- B. The council shall release an additional 40 percent of the total grant funds upon receipt of an expenditure report covering the portion of grant funds released under item A, that demonstrates compliance with parts 4360.0100 to 4360.1100 and the conditions of the grant agreement.
- C. The council shall release the final 20 percent of the total grant funds upon receipt of all reports required by part 4360.0900.

Subp. 10. **Accounts required.** The sponsor or fiscal agent shall establish and maintain for each project separate bookkeeping accounts for grant funds, matching funds in the form of money, and in-kind matching funds.

4360.0900 DEMONSTRATION GRANT REPORTING REQUIREMENTS.

A project sponsor or fiscal agent receiving a demonstration grant shall submit the following reports to the council:

- A. quarterly reports, on a form provided by the council, shall be submitted once each calendar quarter in the third week of the last month of the quarter according to the following schedule: first quarter (January, February, March); second quarter (April, May, June); third quarter (July, August, September); and fourth quarter (October, November, December), and a time period not covered in any report shall be addressed in the next subsequent report; the quarterly report shall include a project promotion and publicity component that will clearly show the progress of the project during the quarter in order to provide the general public, target population groups, members of the council, and other funders with timely communication on major project activities;
- B. an expenditure report, showing in detail the purposes for which the initial 40 percent of the grant funds were spent and showing that those purposes complied with parts 4360.0100 to 4360.1100 and the conditions of the grant agreement;
- C. a final expenditure report, showing in detail the purposes for which the second 40 percent of the grant funds were spent, and showing that those purposes complied with parts 4360.0100 to 4360.1100 and the conditions of the grant agreement;
- D. a final project evaluation report, on a form provided by the council, to be submitted at least three weeks before the close of the final grant year for the project;
- E. a brief narrative report, suitable for publication, explaining the project, the activities conducted during the grant period, and any suggestions based upon the experience of the sponsor that can be shared with organizations or individuals interested in replicating the project, to be submitted at least three weeks before the close of the final grant year for the project; and
- F. a final audit, based upon generally accepted principals of accounting, of both grant funds and matching funds, demonstrating compliance with parts 4360.0100 to 4360.1100 and the conditions of the grant agreement, to be submitted at least three weeks before the close of the final grant year for the project; and
- G. a publicity report outlining the results of the project sponsor's ongoing promotion and publicity activities, to be submitted at least three weeks before the close of the final grant year for the project.

4360.1000 SEED GRANT.

Subpart 1. **Purpose.** The council, through the seed grant program, provides grant funds to encourage promising projects by providing funds that will attract other grants and contributions.

Subp. 2. **Eligible applicants.** Nonprofit organizations, units of state and local government, public institutions, and special districts within the state are eligible to apply for seed grants.

KEY: PROPOSED RULES SECTION — Underlining indicates additions to existing rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from existing rule language. If a proposed rule is totally new, it is designated "all new material." **ADOPTED RULES SECTION** — Underlining indicates additions to proposed rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from proposed rule language.

PROPOSED RULES

Subp. 3. **Eligible uses of funds.** The council shall consider applications for seed grant funds for proposed projects that:

- A. seek to accomplish one or more of the goals in one or more of the three priority issue areas that are related to the project;
- B. will use seed grant funds to leverage other public or private funds or both public and private funds;
- C. provide direct benefit to farmers, immediate farm family members, or low-income rural residents of Minnesota;
- D. have objectively measurable short-term (less than 12 months) results;
- E. will use seed grant funds to implement new and innovative projects and programs; and
- F. inform appropriate agencies and organizations of the existence of the project.

Subp. 4. **Ineligible uses of funds.** The council shall not consider an application for seed grant funds for a proposed project that:

- A. is receiving or has received council demonstration or seed grant funds;
- B. does not primarily serve the needs of farmers, immediate farm family members, or low-income rural residents of Minnesota;
- C. will use seed grant funds for physical construction or improvement of existing facilities;
- D. duplicates or is substantially similar to other efforts already being made in the state;
- E. uses seed grant funds to provide operating capital or start-up capital for for-profit private businesses or enterprises;
- F. will replicate a council demonstration project in another geographic area of the state;
- G. has not been submitted by the project sponsor to other agencies of federal, state, or local government for review and comment, as required by law; or
- H. does not seek to accomplish one or more of the goals in one or more of the three priority issue areas related to the project.

Subp. 5. **Matching funds required.** A project sponsor must demonstrate the ability to secure matching funds equal to 70 percent of the total project cost for the grant period. Matching funds that have been secured before the time of application must be documented by submitting a letter of commitment from the source of the matching funds. A project sponsor must include in its application a fundraising strategy and identification of potential sources of matching funds. A project sponsor must provide at least 15 percent of the total project cost in cash.

Subp. 6. **Grant limits.** Seed grants may be made for up to the lesser of 30 percent of the total project cost for the grant period or \$10,000. Seed grants are available on a one-time basis and may not be considered as a source of future or continuing support for projects.

Subp. 7. **Criteria for application review and selection.** Seed grant applications shall be reviewed by council staff, technical advisors to the council, and subcommittees as the council may direct, who shall make recommendations to the council. Applications shall be ranked by the council based upon the following factors:

- A. the extent to which the project will meet the council's issue area goals (maximum ten points);
- B. the potential for leveraging other sources of funds to meet local match requirements (maximum ten points);
- C. the merit of the project design and implementation plan (maximum ten points);
- D. the innovative qualities of the project or whether the project results will provide new knowledge and benefits to rural residents (maximum ten points);
- E. the feasibility of the project work program, budget, and timeline for completion (maximum five points); and
- F. the project sponsor's experience and ability to successfully implement the project (maximum five points).

Subp. 8. **Deadline for release of funds.** The council shall release grant funds to the sponsor or, if a fiscal agent is used, to the fiscal agent according to the schedule contained in items A to C, and the project sponsor should plan grant-related expenditures with the following deadlines in mind:

- A. The council shall release the initial 40 percent of the total grant funds upon execution of the grant agreement.
- B. The council shall release an additional 40 percent of the total grant funds upon receipt of an expenditure report covering the portion of grant funds released under item A, that demonstrates compliance with parts 4360.0100 to 4360.1100 and the conditions of the grant agreement.
- C. The council shall release the final 20 percent of the total grant funds upon receipt of letters of commitment for matching funds and all reports required by part 4360.1100.

4360.1100 SEED GRANT REPORTING REQUIREMENTS.

A project sponsor or fiscal agent shall submit to the council quarterly reports, an expenditure report, a final expenditure report, a final project evaluation report, a brief narrative report, a final audit, and a publicity report containing the same material and subject to the same requirements as the reports required in part 4360.0900, except that the reports required by this part shall contain information on and be submitted for the purpose of seed grants.

4360.1200 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE.

The Office of Management and Budget's Standard Industrial Classification Manual (Manual), published by the Office of Federal Statistical Policy and Standards, U.S. Department of Commerce, is adopted by incorporation by reference. The Manual was last published in 1977, is not subject to frequent change. It is available from the Superintendent of Documents, U.S. Government Printing Office, Washington, D.C. 20402 (Stock Number 4101-0066), and the State Law Library, 117 University Avenue, St. Paul, Minnesota 55155.

Pollution Control Agency

Proposed Permanent Rules Relating to Waste Tire Dump Abatement

Notice of Intent to Adopt Permanent Rules without a Public Hearing

Notice is hereby given that the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency (MPCA) intends to adopt without a public hearing, in accordance with the provisions of Minn. Stat. §§ 14.22 to 14.28 (1984, permanent rules governing the abatement of waste tires dumps.

The proposed rules, if adopted, will provide for the administration of the MPCA's waste tire dump abatement program. The proposed rules provide a procedure by which MPCA will take action to abate waste tire dumps in the State. The proposed rules are authorized by Minn. Stat. § 115A.914, subd. 1 (1984). A copy of the proposed rules is published below. One free copy of the proposed rules is available upon request from the MPCA. Please contact the person whose name and address appears below.

The MPCA has prepared a Statement of Need and Reasonableness that describes the need for and reasonableness of each provision of the proposed rules and identifies the data and information relied upon by the MPCA to support the proposed rules. Copies of the Statement of Need and Reasonableness and of the proposed rules are available and may be obtained by contacting:

Patrick Carey
Minnesota Pollution Control Agency
Solid and Hazardous Waste Division
1935 West County Road B2
Roseville, Minnesota 55113
Telephone: 612/296-7321

Copies of the proposed rules and of the Statement of Need and Reasonableness may also be viewed at the MPCA regional offices at the following locations:

Duluth Region
Duluth Government Center
320 West Second Street
Duluth, Minnesota 55802
218/723-4660

Brainerd Region
304 East River Road
Suite 3
Brainerd, Minnesota 54601
218/828-2492

Detroit Lakes Region
714 Lake Avenue
Suite 220
Detroit Lakes, Minnesota 56501
218/847-1519

Marshall Region
RLC Building
109 South Fifth Street
Marshall, Minnesota 56258
507/537-7146

Rochester Region
2116 Campus Drive Southeast
Rochester, Minnesota 55901
507/285-7343

Interested parties have until 4:30 p.m. on October 1, 1986 to submit comments on the proposed rules. Comments should be submitted to Patrick Carey at the address stated above. The proposed rules may be modified if the data and views received by the

KEY: PROPOSED RULES SECTION — Underlining indicates additions to existing rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from existing rule language. If a proposed rule is totally new, it is designated "all new material." **ADOPTED RULES SECTION** — Underlining indicates additions to proposed rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from proposed rule language.

PROPOSED RULES

MPCA before the end of the comment period warrant modification and the modification does not result in a substantial change in the proposed rules.

Unless 25 or more persons submit written requests for a public hearing on the proposed rules within the comment period, a public hearing will not be held. In the event that a public hearing is required, the MPCA will proceed according to the provisions of Minn. Stat. §§ 14.131 to 14.20 (1984). If a person desires to request a public hearing, the MPCA requests that the person identify the particular provisions objected to, the suggested modifications to the proposed language, and the reasons and data relied on to support the suggested modifications.

Upon adoption of the rules by the MPCA Board, the rules as proposed, this Notice, the Statement of Need and Reasonableness, all written comments received, and the final rules as adopted will be sent to the Attorney General for review as to form and legality. Persons who wish to be advised of the submission of this material to the Attorney General, or wish to receive a copy of the final rules as adopted, should submit a written statement of such request to Patrick Carey at the address previously stated.

Dated 15 August 1986

Thomas J. Kalitowski
Executive Director

Rules as Proposed (all new material)

7035.8000 SCOPE.

Parts 7035.8000 to 7035.8080 establish the procedures that the agency shall follow in moving to abate tire dumps, the procedures that a responsible tire collector shall follow in abating a tire dump pursuant to agency request, and the technical standards that a responsible tire collector must meet during the abatement process.

7035.8010 DEFINITIONS.

Subpart 1. **Applicability.** For the purposes of parts 7035.8000 to 7035.8080, the terms in subparts 2 to 22 have the meanings given them.

Subp. 2. **Abate or abatement.** "Abate" or "abatement" means processing and removing waste tires in a manner accepted by the agency.

Subp. 3. **Abatement increment.** "Abatement increment" means period of time, not greater than six months and not less than one month, as specified in an abatement plan, during which a specified number of waste tires will be removed from the tire dump and processed.

Subp. 4. **Agency.** "Agency" means the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency.

Subp. 5. **Director.** "Director" means the executive director of the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency.

Subp. 6. **Flood plain.** "Flood plain" means any land area that is subject to a one percent or greater chance of flooding in any given year from any source.

Subp. 7. **Operator.** "Operator" means the person responsible for the overall operation of the tire dump. A tire dump operator is a tire collector as defined in Minnesota Statutes, section 115A.90, subdivision 8.

Subp. 8. **Owner.** "Owner" means a person who owns, in whole or in part, the waste tires located in a tire dump, or the land on which the tire dump is located. As used in parts 7035.8000 to 7035.8080, "owner" includes one who holds an interest in the property on which the tire dump is located, as in the case of a lessee. An owner is a tire collector as defined in Minnesota Statutes, section 115A.90, subdivision 8.

Subp. 9. **Person.** "Person" has the meaning given in Minnesota Statutes, section 115A.90, subdivision 5.

Subp. 10. **Processing.** "Processing" has the meaning given in Minnesota Statutes, section 115A.90, subdivision 6.

Subp. 11. **Ravine.** "Ravine" means a deep, narrow cleft or gorge in the earth's surface. A ravine cannot be smoothed out by ordinary tillage.

Subp. 12. **Residuals from processing.** "Residuals from processing" means the unusable material resulting from any chemical or physical processing of waste tires.

Subp. 13. **Responsible tire collector.** "Responsible tire collector" means a person who is the recipient of the abatement request. A responsible tire collector is an owner or operator of a tire dump, as defined in this part.

Subp. 14. **Shoreland.** "Shoreland" means land located within 1,000 feet from the normal high water mark of a lake, pond, or flowage, or land within 300 feet of a river or stream, or a flood plain as established by ordinance.

Subp. 15. **Sinkhole.** "Sinkhole" means a closed depression formed by subsidence of the underlying bedrock.

Subp. 16. **Tire.** "Tire" has the meaning given in Minnesota Statutes, section 115A.90, subdivision 7.

Subp. 17. **Tire collector.** "Tire collector" has the meaning given in Minnesota Statutes, section 115A.90, subdivision 8.

Subp. 18. **Tire-derived products.** "Tire-derived products" means usable materials produced from the chemical or physical processing of a waste tire.

Subp. 19. **Tire dump.** "Tire dump" has the meaning given in Minnesota Statutes, section 115A.90, subdivision 9.

Subp. 20. **Tire processor.** "Tire processor" has the meaning given in Minnesota Statutes, section 115A.90, subdivision 10.

Subp. 21. **Waste tire.** "Waste tire" has the meaning given in Minnesota Statutes, section 115A.90, subdivision 11.

Subp. 22. **Wetland.** "Wetland" means any area that is covered by standing water during any portion of a year. As used in this part, "wetland" includes but is not limited to wetlands as defined in Classification of Wetlands and Deep Water Habitats of the United States, 1979. This publication was issued by the United States Department of the Interior, Fish and Wildlife Service, Washington, D.C. 20402. This publication is available at the Minnesota State Government Law Library, Ford Building, 117 University Avenue, Saint Paul, Minnesota. This publication is incorporated into this definition by reference and is not subject to frequent change.

7035.8020 ABATEMENT PROCEDURES.

Subpart 1. **Scope.** Subparts 2, 3, and 4 describe the criteria the agency shall use in deciding which tire dumps to abate first, the procedures that the agency shall follow in abating tire dumps, and the actions that responsible tire collectors must take to comply with an agency request to abate.

Subp. 2. **Abatement priorities.** The agency shall issue a request for abatement action to tire collectors responsible for tire dumps that meet the following priority criteria:

A. First priority: tire dumps with over 1,000,000 waste tires. Tire dumps with over 1,000,000 waste tires shall be ranked based on the priority criteria in items B and C.

B. Second priority: tire dumps posing fire hazards. In ranking tire dumps that are fire hazards, the agency shall consider the number of waste tires in the tire dump; the proximity of the tire dump to population concentrations; the proximity of the tire dump to natural resources that would be affected by a fire at the tire dump; and the characteristics of the tire dump that might make it susceptible to fire, including but not limited to the absence of fire lanes, the lack of emergency equipment, the presence of easily combustible materials, and the lack of site access control.

C. Third priority: tire dumps in densely populated areas. In ranking tire dumps located in densely populated areas, the agency shall consider the population concentration within five miles of the tire dump; the number of waste tires in the tire dump; the hazardous characteristics of the tire dump, including but not limited to its susceptibility to fire or to mosquito infestation; and whether the tire dump is visible from any public way.

D. Fourth priority: remaining tire dumps. For tire dumps that do not meet the priority criteria in subpart 3, items A to C, the agency shall consider the number of waste tires located at the tire dump; the hazardous characteristics of the tire dump, including but not limited to its susceptibility to fire or mosquito infestation; and the population and natural resources that might be affected by the presence of the tire dump.

Subp. 3. **Request for abatement action.** The agency shall issue a request for abatement action to all responsible tire collectors. A request for abatement action shall be in writing, specify the action that must be taken to comply, the time allowed for response, the reasons for requesting the action, and the actions that the agency will take if the requested action is not taken in the requested time.

Subp. 4. **Requested action.** The request for abatement action shall require that the responsible tire collector or collectors submit to the director an abatement plan meeting the criteria established in part 7035.8030. The request for abatement action shall require that the responsible tire collector or collectors agree to implement the abatement plan by entering into a stipulation agreement with the agency.

7035.8030 CONTENTS OF ABATEMENT PLAN.

Subpart 1. **Goal.** The abatement of a tire dump subject to an agency abatement action shall be accomplished through the processing and removal of the waste tires present in the tire dump. Abatement action must be in accordance with a plan that meets the

KEY: PROPOSED RULES SECTION — Underlining indicates additions to existing rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from existing rule language. If a proposed rule is totally new, it is designated "all new material." **ADOPTED RULES SECTION** — Underlining indicates additions to proposed rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from proposed rule language.

PROPOSED RULES

criteria in this part. If approved by the director, a plan that meets the criteria in this part shall be incorporated into a stipulation agreement signed by the responsible tire collector or collectors and the agency.

Subp. 2. Processing on-site. If the responsible tire collector elects to process the waste tires on the tire dump site, the following information must be included in the abatement plan submitted to the director in compliance with the request for abatement action:

A. A description of the processing techniques.

B. A description of the equipment that will be used on the site to process and remove the waste tires. The function of each piece of equipment should be specifically noted.

C. The name, address, and telephone number of the ultimate user of the tire-derived products produced from the processing of the waste tires constituting the tire dump.

D. A description of how any residuals from processing the waste tires will be disposed.

E. A time schedule for removal and processing of the waste tires constituting the tire dump. Abatement of the tire dump must be completed within five years of the execution of the stipulation agreement incorporating the abatement plan. Abatement increments must be established.

F. A time schedule for bringing the tire dump into compliance with the technical and operational standards in parts 7035.8050 to 7035.8060. The tire dump must be in compliance with all technical and operational standards within six months, unless otherwise agreed to in the stipulation agreement incorporating the abatement plan. An emergency preparedness manual meeting the standards in part 7035.8060, subpart 8, must be submitted to the director as part of the abatement plan.

G. A description of how records on the number of waste tires processed and removed will be maintained.

H. If the responsible tire collector will seek reimbursement under part 7035.8070, an estimate of the net cost of processing the waste tires using the most cost-effective processing alternative. This estimate must be supported through submission of documentation of the net cost of processing the waste tires.

Subp. 3. Processing off-site. If the responsible tire collector elects to remove the waste tires to another location for processing, the following information must be included in the abatement plan submitted to the director in compliance with the request for abatement action.

A. A description of the equipment that will be used to pick up and transport the waste tires to the tire processor.

B. If the responsible tire collector will contract with another person or firm for the transportation of the waste tires, the name, address, and telephone number of that person or firm.

C. The name, address, and telephone number of the facility at which the waste tires will be processed, and a description of the processing techniques employed by that tire processor.

D. A time schedule for the removal of the waste tires constituting the tire dump. The abatement of the tire dump must be completed within five years of the execution of the stipulation agreement incorporating the abatement plan. Abatement increments must be established.

E. A time schedule for bringing the tire dump into compliance with the technical and operational standards in parts 7035.8050 to 7035.8060. The tire dump must be in compliance with all technical standards within six months, unless otherwise agreed to in the stipulation agreement incorporating the abatement plan. An emergency preparedness manual meeting the standards in part 7035.8060, subpart 8, must be submitted to the director as part of the abatement plan.

F. A description of how records on the number of waste tires removed will be maintained.

G. If the responsible tire collector will seek reimbursement under part 7035.8070, an estimate of the net cost of processing the waste tires using the most cost-effective processing alternative. This estimate must be supported through submission of documentation of the net cost of processing the waste tires.

Subp. 4. Permitting during abatement. If the responsible tire collector wishes to obtain an agency permit for the site that is the subject of the abatement action, the responsible tire collector must notify the director of this intent at the time the abatement plan is submitted, and agree to develop a plan for bringing the site into compliance with the technical rules for waste tire storage, transfer, or processing facilities once rules governing these facilities are in place.

Subp. 5. New waste tires. If the responsible tire collector wants to continue to receive new waste tires during the time the tire dump is being abated, the responsible tire collector must notify the director of this intent at the time the abatement plan is submitted, and agree to develop a plan for processing and removal of the new waste tires.

7035.8040 INADEQUATE RESPONSE TO A REQUEST FOR ABATEMENT ACTION.

Subpart 1. Inadequate response. The agency shall determine if a responsible tire collector has failed to make an adequate response to a request for abatement action. The agency may find that response has been inadequate if:

- A. the responsible tire collector has not responded to the request for abatement action within the time period specified in the request for abatement action;
- B. the responsible tire collector has failed to submit an abatement plan that meets the criteria in part 7035.8030;
- C. the responsible tire collector has failed to sign a stipulation agreement incorporating the abatement plan approved by the director; or
- D. the responsible tire collector has failed to comply with a term or condition of the stipulation agreement incorporating the abatement plan.

Subp. 2. **Abatement order.** If the agency determines that a responsible tire collector has failed to make an adequate response to a request for abatement action, the agency may issue a tire dump abatement order to the responsible tire collector. A tire dump abatement order may provide for entering the property where the tire dump is located, taking the waste tires into public custody, and arranging for their processing and removal.

7035.8050 TECHNICAL STANDARDS.

Subpart 1. **Scope.** During the time a tire dump is being abated according to an abatement plan approved by the director, the responsible tire collector shall operate and maintain the tire dump in compliance with the following standards.

Subp. 2. **Indoor storage.** Waste tires stored indoors shall be stored under conditions that meet or exceed those in The Standard for Storage of Rubber Tires, NFPA 231D-1980 edition, adopted by the National Fire Protection Association, San Diego, California. This publication is available at the Minnesota State Government Law Library, Ford Building, 117 University Avenue, Saint Paul, Minnesota; the Office of Public Safety, Fire Marshal Division; or any local fire department. This publication is incorporated by reference and is not subject to frequent change.

Subp. 3. **Location of waste tire piles.** No waste tires shall be stored in any area where they may be subjected to immersion in water, including but not limited to flood plains, wetlands, shorelands, sinkholes, or ravines.

Subp. 4. **Dimensions of waste tire piles.** No individual waste tire pile shall have an area greater than 10,000 square feet or a vertical height greater than 20 feet. A 50-foot fire lane shall be placed around the perimeter of each waste tire pile. This fire lane shall be maintained free of rubbish, equipment, and vegetation at all times.

7035.8060 OPERATIONAL STANDARDS.

Subpart 1. **Scope.** During the time a tire dump is being abated pursuant to an abatement plan approved by the director, the tire dump must be operated in compliance with the following standards.

Subp. 2. **Burning.** No operations involving the use of open flames, blow torches, or highly flammable substances shall be conducted within ten feet of a waste tire pile.

Subp. 3. **Emergency equipment.** Equipment for the control of accidental fires shall be provided and maintained at the tire dump.

Subp. 4. **Emergency communications.** Communication equipment shall be provided and maintained at the tire dump. Arrangements to acquire fire protection services for the tire dump shall be made through agreement with local fire protection authorities.

Subp. 5. **Access.** An approach and access road to the tire dump shall be maintained passable for any vehicle at all times. Access to the tire dump shall be strictly controlled through use of fences and gates.

Subp. 6. **Vegetation.** The tire dump shall be maintained free of grass, underbrush, and other potentially flammable vegetation at all times.

Subp. 7. **Storage limitation.** Only waste tires or tire-derived products may be stored at the tire dump.

Subp. 8. **Emergency manual.** The operator of the tire dump shall prepare and maintain at the tire dump site an emergency preparedness manual containing the following elements:

- A. a list of names and numbers of persons to be contacted in the event of a fire, flood, or other emergency involving the tire dump;
- B. a list of the emergency response equipment present at the tire dump, its location, and how it should be used in the event of a fire or other emergency; and

KEY: PROPOSED RULES SECTION — Underlining indicates additions to existing rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from existing rule language. If a proposed rule is totally new, it is designated "all new material." **ADOPTED RULES SECTION** — Underlining indicates additions to proposed rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from proposed rule language.

PROPOSED RULES

C. a description of the procedures that should be followed in the event of a fire at the tire dump, including procedures to contain and dispose of the oily material generated by the combustion of large numbers of tires.

The procedures in the emergency preparedness manual shall be followed in the event of an emergency at the tire dump. The emergency preparedness manual shall be updated once a year, upon changes in operations at the tire dump, or if required by the director.

Subp. 9. **Emergency notification and reports.** The operator of the tire dump shall immediately notify the director in the event of a fire or other emergency at the tire dump with potential off-site impacts. Within two weeks of any emergency involving potential off-site impact, the operator of the tire dump shall submit to the director a report on the emergency. This report shall set out the origins of the emergency, the actions that were taken to deal with the emergency, the results of the actions that were taken, and an analysis of the success or failure of the actions.

Subp. 10. **Operational record.** The operator of the tire dump shall maintain records of the number of waste tires received at the tire dump, stored at the tire dump, and shipped from the tire dump. Records shall also be kept of the amount of tire-derived products received, stored, or shipped from the tire dump. At the completion of an abatement increment, the responsible tire collector shall submit to the director a record of the approximate number of waste tires remaining in the tire dump; the amount of tire-derived products stored at the tire dump; and the number of waste tires or amount of tire-derived products received at the tire dump and shipped from the tire dump during the abatement increment. For waste tires and tire-derived products shipped to another location, the date and the amount shipped must be included.

Subp. 11. **Inspection.** At the completion of each abatement increment, the responsible tire collector shall notify the director so that an inspection of the tire dump may be conducted to certify the completion of the required abatement.

7035.8070 REIMBURSEMENT.

Subpart 1. **Scope.** The agency may reimburse a responsible tire collector for the cost of abating the tire dump according to the criteria and limits in this part and as set out in the stipulation agreement incorporating the abatement plan.

Subp. 2. **Eligibility of responsible tire collector.** Only those tire collectors who notified the agency under part 7035.8030 [Emergency], who are recipients of an agency request to abate a tire dump, and who have entered into a stipulation agreement incorporating an abatement plan may request the agency for abatement cost reimbursement.

Subp. 3. **Eligible costs.** Only the cost of abatement of waste tires collected before November 21, 1985, is eligible for reimbursement.

Subp. 4. **Reimbursement rate.** A reimbursement rate shall be established in the stipulation agreement incorporating the abatement plan. The director shall establish the reimbursement rate. The reimbursement rate shall be based on the most cost-effective means of abating the tire dump, considering all alternatives available to the responsible tire collector, and the amount of money available to the agency for tire dump abatement. In calculating the reimbursement rate for waste tires that do not exceed an 18-inch rim diameter, 35-inch outside diameter, and a 14-inch tire width, the director shall use the following formula to determine which abatement alternative is the most cost effective.

$$R = (M \times \$0.125) + \text{or} - PC$$

(transport cost) (processing cost)

Where R is the potential reimbursement rate in dollars per ton; M is the miles needed to transport the waste tires to the processing facility; the figure \$0.125 represents the cost of transporting a ton of waste tires one mile; and PC is the net dollar cost per ton to the responsible tire collector of processing these waste tires. If the responsible tire collectors processing revenues exceed processing costs, for example, there is no net cost but instead a net profit, the amount of revenue shall be subtracted from the transportation cost portion of the formula. PC may not exceed \$66 per ton.

The reimbursement rate for waste tires exceeding an 18-inch rim diameter, a 35-inch outside diameter, or a 14-inch tire width, shall be established by the director on a case-by-case basis. If the responsible tire collector seeks reimbursement for the cost of abating these waste tires, the responsible tire collector must submit information on the most cost-effective method of transporting (if the waste tires are to be processed off-site) and processing these waste tires when submitting the information required in part 7035.8030, subpart 2, item H, and subpart 3, item G. The director will choose a reimbursement rate that reflects the most cost-effective method of transporting and processing these waste tires.

Subp. 5. **Reimbursement total.** The director shall establish the total amount of money that will be available for reimbursement of all eligible abatement costs incurred at any site. This total shall be based on the reimbursement rate, the total amount of money available to the agency for abatement of tire dumps, and the spending priorities established by the legislature in Minnesota Statutes, section 115A.912, subdivision 2. This total shall be incorporated into the stipulation agreement incorporating the abatement plan. To change the total, an amendment of the stipulation agreement shall be required. The agency shall not consider or approve requests for reimbursement for more than ten percent above the dollar amount established in the original stipulation agreement.

7035.8080 REIMBURSEMENT DISBURSEMENT.

Subpart 1. **Request for disbursement.** After the completion of an abatement increment, the responsible tire collector may request the director for reimbursement of the costs incurred during that abatement increment.

Subp. 2. **Findings.** Before any money is disbursed as reimbursement for the cost of abatement, the director shall make the following determinations:

- A. the abatement increment for which reimbursement is sought has been certified as complete;
- B. the abatement cost for which reimbursement is sought was actually incurred; and
- C. the responsible tire collector is in compliance with all terms and conditions of the stipulation agreement.

Subp. 3. **Documentation.** The director may request the responsible tire collector to submit any documentation the director deems necessary to enable the director to make the determinations in subpart 1.

Subp. 4. **Disbursement.** The amount of money to be disbursed as reimbursement for the cost of abatement shall be based on the actual costs to the responsible tire collector, provided that those costs are not in excess of the reimbursement rate established in the stipulation agreement. No money shall be disbursed to reimburse abatement expenses that exceed the total reimbursement amount set under part 7035.8070, subpart 5, and as incorporated into the stipulation agreement.

ADOPTED RULES

The adoption of a rule becomes effective after the requirements of Minn. Stat. § 14.14-14.28 have been met and five working days after the rule is published in *State Register*, unless a later date is required by statutes or specified in the rule.

If an adopted rule is identical to its proposed form as previously published, a notice of adoption and a citation to its previous *State Register* publication will be printed.

If an adopted rule differs from its proposed form, language which has been deleted will be printed with strikeouts and new language will be underlined. The rule's previous *State Register* publication will be cited.

An emergency rule becomes effective five working days after the approval of the Attorney General as specified in Minn. Stat. § 14.33 and upon the approval of the Revisor of Statutes as specified in § 14.36. Notice of approval by the Attorney General will be published as soon as practicable, and the adopted emergency rule will be published in the manner provided for adopted rules under § 14.18.

Department of Commerce

Adopted Rules Relating to Cancellation of Commercial Policies

The rules proposed and published at *State Register*, Volume 10, Number 50, pages 2448-2449, June 9, 1986 (10 S.R. 2448) are adopted as proposed.

Department of Commerce

Adopted Rules Relating to Cosmetology

The rules proposed and published at *State Register*, Volume 10, Number 44, pages 2201-2211, April 28, 1986 (10 S.R. 2201) are adopted with the following modifications:

Rules as Adopted

2640.0100 DEFINITIONS.

Subp. 18. **Office Department.** "~~Office~~" "Department" means the Department of Commerce.

KEY: PROPOSED RULES SECTION — Underlining indicates additions to existing rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from existing rule language. If a proposed rule is totally new, it is designated "all new material." **ADOPTED RULES SECTION** — Underlining indicates additions to proposed rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from proposed rule language.

ADOPTED RULES

2640.0500 UNREGULATED SERVICES.

Subp. 2. **Disclosure of courses.** Each school shall clearly identify those courses and clinical experiences in its curriculum which are not required by the office department and which pertain to services not licensed by the state. These courses shall be clearly identified in all recruitment advertising and written material used for the purposes of soliciting prospective students.

Nonrequired courses and unregulated services shall be conspicuously identified in all written material, in type of the same size as the course or service name.

Instructional time and clinical experience in unregulated services shall not be included in the minimum hours of schooling required for licensure.

2640.0700 INSPECTIONS.

Subpart 1. **Office Department staff to conduct.** Salons and schools shall be inspected by the office department staff. Advance notice of inspections shall not be given.

Subp. 2. **Grading.** Inspectors shall grade items "S" for compliance with Minnesota Statutes, chapter 155A and these rules and "U" for noncompliance.

All items graded "U" shall be corrected within ten business days, and written notification of the correction shall be sent to the office department within that time.

Failure to correct a noncompliance item may be grounds for suspension or revocation of the salon or school license, and of the individual license of the manager and the cosmetologist, manicurist, esthetician, or instructor involved.

Subp. 3. **Business hours and location.** Each salon owner shall provide the office department with an accurate schedule of the hours that the salon is open for business. If the salon is open by appointment only, the salon owner shall designate one-half day a month when he or she shall be available at the salon for inspection of the salon.

For country shops, owners shall supply a detailed map indicating the salon's exact location and directions for driving to that salon.

2640.1100 EXAMINATION ADMINISTRATION.

Subpart 1. **Schedules and sites.** Examination schedules and sites shall be determined by the office department.

Subp. 2. **Exam space.** Each school shall make space available on its premises for the performance of the licensing examinations upon request by the office department, if the request is reasonable and timely.

Subp. 3. **Instructor examination.** Instructor examination:

A. The office department shall have access to the clinic area of a licensed school no more than once per year and to licensed instructors no more than twice per year for assistance in conducting the practical examination for instructors.

B. Each examinee is responsible for providing his or her own model for the practical examination and shall be responsible for insuring the suitability of that model for the examination. Models shall be over 16 years of age and shall be required to sign a waiver releasing the office department, the examiners, the host school, and the examinee of all professional liability. The model shall not be a licensed cosmetologist or a cosmetology student.

2640.1300 COSMETOLOGISTS, MANICURISTS, AND ESTHETICIANS.

In addition to the requirements of part 2640.1200, the applicant shall provide documentation of having completed the following professional training, within three years prior to this application:

C. current licensure from another state, District of Columbia, territory, or country. A certified statement from the licensing body that the applicant is currently licensed shall be attached to the application. If the other jurisdiction does not issue a license, the applicant shall provide documentation of lawful practice for at least 1,800 hours within three years prior to the application. Applicants claiming training and experience in a foreign country shall supply official English language transcripts of all documentation and evidence submitted to the office department.

2640.1500 INSTRUCTORS.

Subpart 1. **Full instructors.** In addition to the requirements of part 2640.1200, the applicant shall pay a processing fee and shall successfully complete a practical examination demonstrating teaching skills and techniques as related to the instruction of cosmetology practices and provide documentation of:

B. successful completion of at least 38 hours of training in a program or programs approved by the office department and which will provide the knowledge and skills necessary to instruct in the field of cosmetology;

2640.1800 MAINTAINING INDIVIDUAL LICENSES.

Subp. 2. **Change of name or address.** The licensee shall advise the office department of a change of name or address in writing, including both new and old name and address, within 30 days of the change, and pay the duplicate license fee.

Subp. 6. **Additional requirements for instructor.** In addition to the requirements of subparts 1 to 4, the instructor shall carry out the curriculum of the school, as approved by the office department, preparing students for licensure under the laws of Minnesota.

2640.1900 LICENSE RENEWAL FOR INDIVIDUALS.

Subpart 1. **Application.** All licenses expire on December 31 of the year due and each licensee is responsible for renewing his or her license. An individual who does not renew his or her license by December 31 of the year in which it is due is considered unlicensed as of January 1. A postmark of December 31 constitutes timely renewal. Failure to receive a notice of renewal from the office department does not constitute a valid excuse for not renewing the license.

Subp. 2. **Practical and educational requirements.** The licensee shall establish that his or her knowledge and skills are up to date, by meeting the following requirements no later than the expiration of his or her current license:

B. An instructor shall pay the processing fee and shall provide evidence of having successfully completed 45 hours of continuing education approved by the office department, including at least 15 hours of teaching-related material and 15 hours related to analysis and use of professional clinical products.

2640.2100 REINSTATEMENT AFTER DENIAL, SUSPENSION, OR REVOCATION.

An applicant shall have a license reinstated for the remainder of its unexpired term or shall be relicensed in the following circumstances:

A. after suspension of license, by meeting the following requirements:

(2) the applicant shall make application for reinstatement of license, in writing and on forms supplied by the office department;

B. after revocation or if the suspended license has expired, reinstatement will be accomplished by meeting the following requirements:

(2) the applicant shall make application for relicensure, in writing and on forms provided by the office department;

2640.3200 SALON LICENSURE.

Subpart 1. **All salon licenses.** The requirements of parts 2640.3100, 2640.3200, 2640.3700, 2640.3800, and 2640.4100 shall be met by all applicants proposing to establish a salon. Upon compliance, the office department will issue a provisional license which will enable the salon to open for business. The salon's compliance with all applicable provisions of Minnesota Statutes, chapter 155A and these rules shall be confirmed by an operational inspection by the office staff department. A permanent license for the balance of the three-year license cycle shall be issued upon confirmation of the salon's compliance.

Subp. 2. **Application.** The person, association, firm, or corporation proposing to establish a cosmetology, esthetician, or manicure salon shall apply in writing to the office department, on forms supplied by the office department, giving the following information:

2640.3300 MAINTAINING A SALON LICENSE.

The following requirements shall be met by all salons:

B. The manager shall advise the office department of a change in name of the salon in writing, including both new and old name and address, within 30 days of the change.

2640.3400 SALON LICENSE RENEWAL.

Subp. 2. **Request for renewal.** All licenses expire on December 31 of the year due and each licensee is responsible for renewing his or her license. A salon license that is not renewed by December 31 of the year due is considered unlicensed as of January 1. A postmark of December 31 constitutes timely renewal. Not receiving a notice of renewal from the office department does not constitute a valid excuse for not renewing the license.

KEY: PROPOSED RULES SECTION — Underlining indicates additions to existing rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from existing rule language. If a proposed rule is totally new, it is designated "all new material." **ADOPTED RULES SECTION** — Underlining indicates additions to proposed rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from proposed rule language.

ADOPTED RULES

2640.3600 SALON REQUIREMENTS.

Subp. 5. **Change of name.** The salon manager or owner shall inform the office department in writing, within 60 days, of a name change, including old and new name, and pay the processing fee. A license will be issued in the new name for the remaining term of the old license. The old license shall be returned to the office department upon receipt of the license in the new name.

2640.4000 SALON SUPERVISION.

E. The manager shall maintain, on the salon premises, the work time records of each employee, as required by Minnesota Statutes, section 177.30. Time records shall be provided upon written request to the licensee or to the office department.

2640.5100 COMPLIANCE BY PRESENT LICENSEES AND STUDENTS.

Subp. 8. **Interpreters.** Foreign language students whose enrollment registration is on file in the office department on April 1, 1983, may use an interpreter at the examinations, provided that they have first demonstrated to the office department that they have a sufficient grasp of the English language to read, comprehend, and follow chemical product labels and instructions.

Subp. 10. **Variations.** The ~~director~~ commissioner may grant a variance from physical requirements to schools not otherwise exempted by this rule upon receipt of documentation demonstrating an existing physical limitation or economic hardship in excess of reasonably anticipated costs of meeting the requirement.

2640.5200 SCHOOL LICENSURE.

Subpart 1. **Application contents.** The person, association, firm, or corporation proposing to establish a cosmetology school shall make written application to the office department, on forms supplied by the office department, giving the following information:

Subp. 4. **Surety bond.** The applicant shall file with the ~~director of the office~~ commissioner a continuous corporate surety bond in the amount of \$10,000, conditioned upon the faithful performance of all contracts and agreements with students made by the applicant. The bond shall run to the state of Minnesota and to any person who may have a cause of action against the applicant arising at any time after the bond is filed and before it is canceled for breach of any contract or agreement made by the applicant with any student. The aggregate liability of the surety for all breaches of the conditions of the bond shall not exceed \$10,000. The surety of the bond may cancel it upon giving 60 days notice in writing to the ~~director of the office~~ commissioner and shall be relieved of liability for any breach of condition occurring after the effective date of cancellation.

2640.5300 MAINTAINING A SCHOOL LICENSE.

Subp. 2. **Notification of changes.** Each school shall notify the office department within 30 days of the effective date, unless otherwise indicated below, and in writing, of all alterations, additions, and deletions in the information contained in its original license application, and supply current information, including but not limited to:

A. changes in managerial or instructional staff including additions and terminations, or changes in employment status (full-time, part-time, or number of hours worked). The school shall notify the office department of all such changes within ten days of the effective date of the change;

Subp. 3. **Retention of ad copies.** The school shall maintain copies of all advertisements for clinic services for three years. They shall be provided to the office department at its request.

2640.5400 SCHOOL LICENSE RENEWAL.

All of the following requirements shall be met in order to renew a license:

A. The licensee shall be responsible for requesting renewal of his or her school license, in writing, before that license expires. This may be accomplished on the license renewal notice form provided by the office department. However, if this renewal notice is not received, it is still the licensee's responsibility to properly renew the school license.

F. The licensee shall have filed with the ~~director of the office~~ commissioner a surety bond as required by part 2640.5200, subpart 4.

2640.5500 DELINQUENT SCHOOL LICENSES.

Failure to renew a school license prior to its expiration date shall result in a delinquent license. The applicant shall comply with the following:

B. If more than 30 days have elapsed since the expiration of the license, the licensee shall reapply for a school license as if no license had been previously issued. The school's operation without a valid license shall be a violation of the law and no student training provided during that period will be recognized by the office department.

2640.5600 CERTIFICATE OF IDENTIFICATION.

Subpart 1. **Issuance.** Upon written request to the office department, a licensee may be issued a certificate of identification

authorizing his or her lawful practice in a place other than a licensed salon. To obtain the certificate, the individual shall:

- B. provide documentation to the office department of at least 2700 hours of lawful practice in Minnesota;

2640.5700 DUPLICATE LICENSE.

A duplicate license will be issued only upon the loss or destruction of the initial license. The licensee shall submit to the office department an affidavit indicating why a duplicate license is required, and submit the required fee.

2640.5800 BASIC REQUIREMENTS FOR SCHOOLS.

Subp. 5. **Change of name.** The school owner or manager shall inform the office department, in writing, of a name change within 60 days of the effective date of the change and pay the school name change fee. A license will be issued in the new name for the unexpired term of the old license, which shall be returned to the office department upon receipt of the license in the new name.

2640.5900 FACILITIES REQUIREMENTS FOR LICENSURE.

In addition to the requirements of parts 2640.5200 and 2640.5800, the requirements contained in parts 2640.6000 to 2640.7500 shall be met by the school before a license will be issued. Compliance with these requirements shall be confirmed by an inspection by cosmetology unit staff the department. The license shall be issued after a satisfactory initial inspection.

2640.6000 PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS.

Subpart 1. **Space.** Space:

A. There shall be a combined clinic and classroom size of at least 25 square feet for each enrollee to be accommodated. This space shall exclude all office department space, storage areas, lounge facilities, and restrooms.

2640.6200 SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS.

Subp. 4. **Instructional aids.** The school shall have instructional aids to provide the required instruction to all enrollees. There shall be at least one bulletin board, located in the student lounge, which shall contain, but not be limited to, all communications addressed to the students from the office department and copies of the student rules and disciplinary policies. There shall be at least one blackboard in each classroom.

2640.6600 CURRICULUM APPROVAL AND CONTENT.

Each cosmetology school shall have a curriculum approved by the office department to provide instruction, divided into daily lesson plans. The curriculum shall include theory and practical application of skills, including the instruction set forth in parts 2640.6700 to 2640.7000.

2640.6700 COSMETOLOGIST TRAINING.

E. Documentation of the student's completion of the required quotas in each category in item D shall be sent to the office department with the documentation of successful completion of the entire course of training.

2640.6800 ESTHETICIAN TRAINING.

D. There shall be planned clinical instruction and experience of approximately 200 hours in the applied sciences.

(2) Documentation of the student's completion of the required facials or makeup applications shall be sent to the office department with the documentation of successful completion of the entire course of training.

2640.6900 MANICURIST TRAINING.

D. There shall be planned clinical instruction and experience of approximately 150 hours in applied sciences and skills.

(2) The documentation of the student's completion of the required manicures shall be sent to the office department with documentation of successful completion of the course of training.

2640.7000 REFRESHER COURSES.

A licensed cosmetology school, salon, or a professional association may plan and offer a refresher course taught by licensed instructors of at least 40 hours in length for cosmetologists, estheticians, and/or manicurists. The course shall focus on knowledge, skills, and product types related to chemical services and shall balance lectures, demonstrations, and clinical experiences. It shall be held in a licensed salon or school. Sponsors of a proposed course shall apply for office department approval at least ten business days prior to the course date. The course sponsor shall pay the processing fee. The course sponsor shall provide the individuals who

KEY: PROPOSED RULES SECTION — Underlining indicates additions to existing rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from existing rule language. If a proposed rule is totally new, it is designated "all new material." **ADOPTED RULES SECTION** — Underlining indicates additions to proposed rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from proposed rule language.

ADOPTED RULES

successfully pass a final course examination with course completion certificates. The class attendees are then responsible for providing a copy of the completion certificates to the Department of Commerce when required.

2640.7800 INSTRUCTORS.

A. There shall be at least two licensed instructors on the school premises during the time students are present; and each school shall have a minimum ratio of one instructor for each 1 to 20 students to be accommodated; and all students shall be under the supervision of an instructor at all times when in a classroom, clinic, or other area in which they are performing cosmetology services.

(2) The school shall notify the ~~office~~ department in writing within ten days of each occurrence of failure to meet the required instructor quota.

B. If a school is not in compliance with item A, students will be notified by the ~~office~~ department that it will not accept hours accrued during the period of noncompliance.

2640.8200 STUDENT RECORDS.

Student records shall be maintained as follows:

A. All records relating to students shall be maintained and up-to-date, in a secure and orderly fashion and shall be kept on the school premises. All student records shall be legible and shall be available for inspection by a representative of the ~~office~~ department during normal business hours of the school or by mail upon the written request of the ~~office~~ department.

E. The school shall maintain the following reports for each student:

(4) a progress evaluation report. Upon completion of one-half of the total required hours, the school shall give the student and the ~~office~~ department a written progress evaluation assessing the student's progress towards successful fulfillment of the license requirements;

(5) certification of readiness to take the written examination. Documentation signed by school owner or manager, shall indicate that the student has successfully completed 1,350, 500, and 315 hours, for cosmetologist, esthetician, and manicurist respectively, of preclinical and clinical training, and is prepared to take the written state licensing examinations. This certification must be received by the ~~student~~ department before the student will be scheduled for the written examinations;

(6) documentation signed by school owner or manager, shall indicate that the student has successfully completed the course of training for which he or she enrolled, including documentation of the student's completion of the practical exercises, as required by parts 2640.6700, item D, 2640.6800, item D, subitem (1), and 2640.6900, item D, subitem (1), and documentation of the student's successful completion of the skills certification review, on a form provided by the ~~office~~ department;

Department of Commerce

Adopted Rules Relating to Real Estate Broker Licensing and Education

The rules proposed and published at *State Register*, Volume 10, Number 50, pages 2449-2459, June 9, 1986 (10 S.R. 2449) are adopted with the following modifications:

Rules as Adopted

2800.6800 CONTINUING EDUCATION.

Subp. 10. **Professional designations.** Courses leading to the following professional designations shall automatically qualify for continuing education credit:

H. Certified Real Estate Broker (CRB) offered by the National Association of Realtors.

I. Certified Residential Specialist (CRS) offered by the National Association of Realtors.

Department of Jobs and Training

Adopted Rules Relating to Sheltered Workshops

The rules proposed and published at *State Register*, Volume 10, Number 37, pages 1838-1851, March 10, 1986 (10 S.R. 1838) are adopted with the following modifications:

Rules as Adopted

3300.2050 DEFINITIONS.

Subp. 6. **Disability adjusted average hourly earnings factor.** "Disability adjusted average hourly earnings factor" means an

average wage calculation for the extended employment program. The calculation has as its numerator the sum of the products which result from multiplying each participant's disability index conversion score by each participant's total wages in the reporting period. Total wages include remuneration for paid holidays and paid sick, vacation, and other paid leave. The calculation has as its denominator the total number of hours worked in the reporting period by the total unduplicated number of participants. Number of hours worked is defined in subpart ~~19~~ 20. The mathematical formula for the wage calculation is represented as follows:

$$\frac{\text{Sum of (the sum of wages in the reporting period for each program participant multiplied by that participant's disability index conversion score)}}{\text{Total number of hours worked by the total unduplicated number of participants in the reporting period}} = \text{Disability adjusted average hourly earnings factor}$$

Subp. 7. **Disability index.** "Disability index" means an index which measures the effect that disability levels have on sheltered employees in achieving their vocational potential. The disability index incorporates by reference the Functional Assessment Inventory (FAI) as revised in May 1983. This inventory was developed and authored by Nancy M. Crewe, Ph.D., and Gary T. Athelstan, Ph.D. and is published by the University of Minnesota. The inventory is not subject to frequent change. It is available for loan and inspection at the State Law Library and for inspection at the Minnesota Department of Jobs and Training, Division of Rehabilitation Services, 390 North Robert Street, Fifth Floor, Saint Paul, Minnesota 55101. The elements of the disability index and the relative power of each element are the following:

C. the FAI adaptivity factor score which is based upon FAI items ~~18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, and 26~~ 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, and 29 with a relative power of 3.15;

Subp. 11. **Extended employment programs.** "Extended employment programs" means programs providing paid work and service hours as a step in the rehabilitation process for those who cannot be readily absorbed in the competitive labor market, or during such time as employment opportunities for them in the competitive labor market do not exist. Extended employment programs are the following:

- A. long-term employment program as defined in subpart 16;
- B. work activity program as defined in subpart ~~32~~ 33;
- C. work component program as defined in subpart ~~33~~ 34;
- D. community based employment program as defined in subpart 3.

Subp. 19. **Nonemployment income.** "Nonemployment income" means regular income that is received by the sheltered employee from human services programs or other legally obligated sources.

Subp. 20. Number of hours worked. "Number of hours worked" means the hours for which a sheltered employee receives pay for performing work, including hours of paid holidays and paid sick, vacation, and other leave, but not including service hours as defined in subpart ~~29~~ 30.

Subp. ~~20~~ 21. **Opportunities for sheltered employees to participate in decisions affecting their employment.** "Opportunities for sheltered employees to participate in decisions affecting their employment" means organized activities sponsored by the long-term sheltered workshop to encourage sheltered employees' participation in decisions affecting their employment and must include the following:

- A. sheltered employee representation on safety committees in long-term sheltered workshops;
- B. at least quarterly meetings where sheltered employees may discuss with staff matters of concern affecting their employment; and
- C. at least semi-annual consultation with sheltered employees' representatives at management staff meetings.

KEY: PROPOSED RULES SECTION — Underlining indicates additions to existing rule language. **Strike outs** indicate deletions from existing rule language. If a proposed rule is totally new, it is designated "all new material." **ADOPTED RULES SECTION** — Underlining indicates additions to proposed rule language. **Strike outs** indicate deletions from proposed rule language.

ADOPTED RULES

Subp. ~~24~~ 22. **Participant.** "Participant" means a sheltered employee who receives one or more days of service or paid work in a specified extended employment program during a reporting period.

Subp. ~~22~~ 23. **Placement.** "Placement" means an offer by an employer and acceptance by a sheltered employee of competitive employment after a written plan has been developed which specifies the number of hours per week of employment and the provision of services reasonably expected to assure continued employment or work.

Subp. ~~23~~ 24. **Program efficiency.** "Program efficiency" means a measurement of the cost of providing a combination of paid work and service hours to program participants in the reporting period. The cost per hour rate results when the allocation for the extended employment program in the reporting period is divided by the combined total of the sum of the number of hours worked by program participants and the sum of the number of service hours provided to program participants in the reporting period. The mathematical calculation is represented as follows:

$$\frac{\text{Program allocation}}{\text{Total hours worked and service hours provided}} = \text{Program efficiency}$$

Subp. ~~24~~ 25. **Rate of placement in competitive employment.** "Rate of placement in competitive employment" means a ratio in which the numerator is the sum of the disability index conversion scores of all participants placed in competitive employment during a reporting period and in which the denominator is the total unduplicated number of participants in all extended employment programs offered by a long-term sheltered workshop during that reporting period. Participants not counted are described in part 3300.2450, subpart 1. The mathematical formula for the calculation is represented as follows:

$$\frac{\text{Sum of disability index conversion scores of participants placed in competitive employment}}{\text{Total unduplicated number of participants in all extended employment programs}} = \text{Rate of placement in competitive employment}$$

Subp. ~~25~~ 26. **Rate of retention in competitive employment.** "Rate of retention in competitive employment" means a ratio in which the numerator is the sum of the disability index conversion scores of participants for each extended employment program who were placed during the previous reporting period and who continued in competitive employment one year or more and in which the denominator is the total unduplicated number of participants in all extended employment programs in the previous reporting period. Participants not counted are described in part 3300.2450, subpart 1. The mathematical formula is represented as follows:

$$\frac{\text{Sum of disability index conversion scores for all participants placed in competitive employment during the previous reporting period who were employed twelve months or more}}{\text{Total unduplicated number of participants in all extended employment programs in the previous reporting period}} = \text{Rate of retention in competitive employment}$$

Subp. ~~26~~ 27. **Rate of transfer to long-term employment.** "Rate of transfer to long-term employment" means a rate derived from a calculation for the work activity program and the work component program in which the numerator is the sum of the disability index conversion scores of the participants who were transferred to long-term employment during the reporting period and in which the denominator is the total unduplicated number of participants of the work activity and work component programs of the long-term sheltered workshop during the reporting period. The mathematical formula for the calculation is represented as follows:

$$\frac{\text{Sum of the disability index conversion scores for participants transferred to long-term employment in the reporting period}}{\text{Total unduplicated number of participants of the work activity and work component programs in the reporting period}} = \text{Rate of transfer to long-term employment}$$

Subp. ~~27~~ 28. **Rate of work and service in community based employment.** "Rate of work and service in community based employment" means a ratio in which the numerator is the sum in all extended employment programs of each participant's number of hours worked and paid service hours provided in community based settings multiplied by each participant's disability index conversion score and in which the denominator is the total number of hours of work and paid service hours provided in all extended employment programs offered by a long-term sheltered workshop. Participants not counted are described in part 3300.2450, subpart 1. The mathematical formula for the calculation is represented as follows:

Number of hours worked and paid service hours provided in com- munity based employment multiplied by each participant's disability index conversion score	=	Rate of work and service in community based employment
Total number of hours worked and paid service hours provided in all extended employment programs		

Subp. ~~28~~ 29. **Responsiveness to grievances.** "Responsiveness to grievances" means that (1) a grievance resolution procedure has been implemented with binding arbitration as its final step (2) education and training of participants in the use of the procedure has occurred (3) the procedure has accommodated participants' disabling conditions and (4) the grievances have been responded to in accordance with the approved procedure.

Subp. ~~29~~ 30. **Service hours.** "Service hours" means the hours of service which an extended employment program provides to participants to maximize their vocational potential, whether paid or unpaid, which are recognized as an expense incurred by the program. Service hours may be provided either on or off the premises of a long-term sheltered workshop. Each of the following categories qualifies as hours of service:

- A. money management training;
- B. training in independent living skills;
- C. utilization of public transportation training and drivers training;
- D. training in grooming and personal care skills;
- E. training in job seeking skills;
- F. job and safety training;
- G. coordination of support services;
- H. behavioral management;
- I. sign language training;
- J. social skill training; ~~and~~
- K. simulated work training; and
- L. orientation, mobility, braille, and electronic communications training.

Subp. ~~30~~ 31. **Sheltered employee.** "Sheltered employee" means an individual with severe physical, mental, emotional, or behavioral disabilities working for pay while participating in any extended employment program offered through a long-term sheltered workshop.

Subp. ~~31~~ 32. **Sheltered employee productivity.** "Sheltered employee productivity" means the extent to which a sheltered employee is using the employee's own current capacity for work in an extended employment program.

Subp. ~~32~~ 33. **Work activity program.** "Work activity program" means a program within the meaning of Minnesota Statutes, section 129A.01, paragraph (f) and which complies with state and federal law, including the federal Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, as amended, which provides paid work and other services and which permits a level of production below that required for a long-term employment program.

KEY: PROPOSED RULES SECTION — Underlining indicates additions to existing rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from existing rule language. If a proposed rule is totally new, it is designated "all new material." **ADOPTED RULES SECTION** — Underlining indicates additions to proposed rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from proposed rule language.

ADOPTED RULES

Subp. ~~33~~ 34. **Work component program.** "Work component program" means a cooperative effort agreed to between a long-term sheltered workshop for a long-term employment or a work activity program and a developmental achievement center licensed by the Minnesota Department of Human Services or other facility to provide a work activity program on a limited scale designed so that the primary responsibility over vocational outcomes will be vested in the long-term employment or work activity program.

3300.2150 CERTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS AND TYPES OF CERTIFICATES.

Subp. 2. **Full certificate.** Requirements for a full long-term sheltered workshop certificate are the following:

J. Each long-term employment program must provide participants with fundamental personnel benefits as defined in part 3300.2050, subpart 14, with a procedure for resolution of grievances which has binding arbitration as a final step and provides responsiveness to grievances as defined in part 3300.2050, subpart ~~28~~ 29, and with opportunities for sheltered employees to participate in decisions affecting their employment as defined in part 3300.2050, subpart ~~20~~ 21.

Subp. 3. **Provisional certificate.** A provisional long-term sheltered workshop certificate may be issued to new entities for new extended employment programs or to existing long-term sheltered workshops for expanded programs for a specified period of time, not to exceed 18 months. In order to obtain a provisional certificate, all new or expanded extended employment programs covered by the certificate must be in full compliance with all the requirements of subpart 2, except item B. However, the extended employment programs must demonstrate that there is a reasonable likelihood that the programs will meet the requirements in subpart 2, item B, within 18 months. If at the end of the 18-month period all of the programs covered by the provisional certificate have not met the requirements in subpart 2, item B, or are no longer meeting any of the other requirements of subpart 2, the commissioner will not issue a full long-term sheltered workshop certificate for the programs. However, a long-term sheltered workshop has the option of removing any noncomplying program from consideration for inclusion under a full certificate. Denial of a full certificate under this subpart means the termination of program certification as provided in part 3300.2250, subpart 7, for all the programs covered by the provisional certificate.

3300.2350 STANDARDS FOR STATE FUNDING.

Subpart 1. **Evaluation factors in general.** After fulfilling the certification requirements of part 3300.2150 and submitting approved plans and budgets as provided in Minnesota Statutes, section 129A.08, subdivision 2, extended employment programs are eligible to receive state funding. Funding of extended employment programs by the commissioner must take into consideration an evaluation of individual program effectiveness. The evaluation factors to be considered are the following:

Subp. 2. **Nonquantifiable evaluation factors.** Before an individual program offered by a long-term sheltered workshop, except a new or expanded program as provided in subpart 6, may receive state funding under part 3300.2550 the individual program must be in full compliance with the nonquantifiable evaluation factors listed in subpart 1, items B, F, G, H, and I. An individual program, except a new or expanded program as provided in subpart 6, must remain in full compliance with the nonquantifiable evaluation factors during the reporting period as established by audit or have all allocated funds withdrawn as authorized by part 3300.2650, item C.

Subp. 3. **Quantifiable evaluation factors.** The quantifiable evaluation factors are listed in subpart 1, items A, C, D, E, J, K, and M. The quantifiable evaluation factors applicable to a long-term employment program and a community based employment program are those at subpart 1, items A, C, D, E, J, and K. The quantifiable evaluation factors applicable to a work activity program and a work component program are listed in subpart 1, items A, C, D, E, J, K, and M. An individual program, except a new or expanded program as provided in subpart 6, must attain the applicable minimum standard as provided in subpart 4 or have all allocated funds withdrawn as authorized by part 3300.2650, item D.

Subp. 4. **Minimum standard for quantifiable evaluation factors.** A program will fail to meet minimum standards when its performance on quantifiable evaluation factors appropriate to the program averages more than one half of one standard deviation below the mean or in the bottom ~~17~~ 31 percent compared with similar programs. The minimum standard is one half of one standard deviation below the mean on a scale which averages the conversion point scales for the quantifiable evaluation factors. A new or expanded program is exempt from attaining the applicable minimum standard during its initial two years of operation as described in subpart 6.

Subp. 5. **Audit.** Before the end of each state fiscal year, the Division of Rehabilitation Services will assess each individual program at least once on its effectiveness as measured by all the evaluation factors in subpart 1, the number of FTEs, the FAI data, and the nonemployment income data. The applicable audited figures from the evaluation factors in subpart 1 and the audited number of FTEs will be used to adjust allocations as found in part 3300.2550, subpart 7. If the total disability indexes resulting from the audited FAI and nonemployment income data vary more than ten percent plus or minus from disability indexes calculated by each individual program, the audited data will be used as the basis to adjust allocations as found in part 3300.2550, subpart 7. If the results of an audit reveal that an individual program, except a new or expanded program as provided in subpart 6, is not fully complying with the nonquantifiable factors in subpart 2, allocated funds will be withdrawn as authorized by part 3300.2650, item C. If the results of an audit reveal that an individual program, except a new or expanded program as provided in subpart 6, has not attained the applicable

minimum standard as described in subpart 4, the individual program will be placed on funding probation. After two continuous years on funding probation as established by audit, the individual program must attain the applicable minimum standard by the end of the following year or have all allocated funds withdrawn as authorized by part 3300.2650, item D.

Subp. 6. **New program evaluation.** An entity offering a new or expanded extended employment program must have been issued a certificate as provided in part 3300.2250 and have submitted an approved plan and budget before it may be eligible to receive state funding and be evaluated under this part. A new or expanded program from its startup must be in full compliance with the nonquantifiable factors listed in subpart 1, items B, F, and G, and must remain in full compliance with those factors during the reporting period as established by audit or have all allocated funds withdrawn as authorized by part 3300.2650, item C. As measured at the end of the first year of operation, a new or expanded individual program must also be in full compliance with the nonquantifiable evaluation factors listed in subpart 1, items H and I as established by audit, or have all allocated funds withdrawn as authorized by part 3300.2650, item C. As measured at the end of the second year of operation, a new or expanded individual program must meet the applicable minimum standard in subpart 4 or the new or expanded program will be placed on funding probation. After two continuous years on funding probation as established by audit, a new or expanded program must attain the applicable minimum standard by the end of the following year or have all its allocated funds withdrawn as authorized by part 3300.2650, item D.

3300.2450 OPERATIONAL POLICIES FOR FUNDING STANDARDS.

Subpart 1. **Exclusions in calculating rates of placement in competitive employment, retention in competitive employment, and work and service in community based employment.** For purposes of the formulas in part 3300.2050, subparts ~~24~~ 25, ~~25~~ 26, and ~~27~~ 28, for rates of placement in competitive employment, retention in competitive employment, and work and service in community based employment, respectively, sheltered employees who are over the age of 60 or who have physically degenerative diseases may be excluded from the denominators in the formulas if:

Subp. 2. **Policies for calculating the rate of placement in competitive employment.** If a sheltered employee is placed twice in competitive employment in a given year, both placements may be included in calculating the placement rate as defined in part 3300.2050, subpart ~~24~~ 25. Any subsequent placement of that sheltered employee in the reporting period will not be considered in calculating the rate of placement. When a sheltered employee is placed in competitive employment but also continues on a part-time basis with an extended employment program, the sheltered employee will be considered to have been placed in competitive employment if the sheltered employee's wages from participation in the extended employment program are at or above 100 percent of the prevailing wage rate for the work performed.

3300.2550 ALLOCATION OF FUNDS.

Subpart 1. **Statewide program allocation.** From the total grant funds available each state fiscal year, the commissioner will establish a statewide program allocation for each of the four extended employment programs unless otherwise directed by the legislature and will determine the ~~approved~~ number of full-time equivalents for each individual program. The total of the individual program FTEs will constitute the ~~approved~~ statewide FTE level. The elements of the statewide allocation for each of the extended employment programs ~~will be determined by the commissioner based upon and the~~ weighted relative power of each element in terms of percentages are the following:

- A. the net program costs for each statewide program in the previous state fiscal year, with a relative power of ten percent;
- B. the net program costs for each statewide program based on budgets submitted for the current state fiscal year, with a relative power of ten percent;
- C. the number of FTEs for each statewide program at the end of the previous state fiscal year, with a relative power of 20 percent;
- D. the number of hours worked in each statewide program in the previous state fiscal year, with a relative power of ten percent;
- E. the need for the services of each statewide program in the current state fiscal year as demonstrated by periodic surveys of the incidence of disability levels and disability types, by periodic surveys of rehabilitation counselors and staff, by research and by waiting lists maintained by long-term sheltered workshops, with a relative power of 40 percent; and
- F. the effect on services provided to current participants in each statewide program of changes in the level of statewide allocation from the previous state fiscal year, with a relative power of ten percent.

KEY: PROPOSED RULES SECTION — Underlining indicates additions to existing rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from existing rule language. If a proposed rule is totally new, it is designated "all new material." **ADOPTED RULES SECTION** — Underlining indicates additions to proposed rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from proposed rule language.

ADOPTED RULES

Subp. 2. **Statewide program allocation base rate.** The commissioner will use 65 49 percent of each statewide program allocation as calculated in subpart 1 to provide a base rate allocation to each individual program offered by a long-term sheltered workshop in direct proportion to the number of approved FTEs in these individual programs. The base rate per FTE is determined by dividing 65 49 percent of the statewide program allocation by the total number of full-time equivalents approved for the statewide program. The mathematical calculation is represented as follows:

$$\frac{(-65.49 \times \text{statewide program allocation})}{\text{approved full-time equivalents}} = \frac{\text{Uniform}}{\text{per-FTE base rate}}$$

The base rate allocation for each individual program is determined by multiplying the per-FTE base rate from the above formula by the number of approved FTEs in the individual program.

Subp. 3. **Statewide program allocation set aside.** The commissioner will set aside 35 51 percent of each statewide program allocation in each current state fiscal year as determined in subpart 1 in order to distribute allocations to individual programs as provided in subpart 4. The distribution in subpart 4, will be based on evaluation factors found in part 3300.2350, subpart 1. The evaluation factors applicable to each statewide program will be weighted in terms of percentages of each statewide program allocation. The factors and percentages applicable to the extended employment programs are the following:

FUNDING FACTOR WEIGHTINGS BY PROGRAM, EXPRESSED AS PERCENTAGES OF TOTAL PROGRAM ALLOCATION

FACTOR	PROGRAM			
	Long-term	Work Activity	Work Comp.	Community-based
1. Disability Level	5 6	5 6	5 6	5 6
2. Economic Conditions	40 23	40 23	40 23	40 23
3. Program Efficiency	2	2	2	2
4. Hourly Earnings	5 6	5 6	5 6	5 6
5. Community based Employment rate	5 6	5 6	5 6	5 6
6. Competitive Employment Placement Rate	4	3	3	4
7. Competitive Employment Retention Rate	4	3	3	4
8. Transfer rate to Long-term		2	2	
TOTAL	35 51	35 51	35 51	35 51

Subp. 6. **New or expanded program funding.** The commissioner will accept a new or expanded individual program for funding based upon the following:

- A. the need for the new or expanded individual program;
- B. the relationship of the new or expanded individual program to any current programs in terms of defined needs;
- C. the performance of current individual programs; and
- D. the geographic distribution of current programs and the new or expanded program in relationship to geographic needs.

When a new or expanded individual program offered by a long-term sheltered workshop is accepted for funding, the commissioner will fund its first and second years of operation based upon its relative percentage of the statewide FTE in that program. A new or expanded program's funding will be determined by dividing its FTE by the statewide FTE, and multiplying that fraction times the statewide allocation for that program. A new or expanded individual program has the right to appeal the commissioner's denial of initial funding as provided in part 3300.3050.

$$\frac{\text{New or expanded individual program FTE}}{\text{Total program FTE}} \times \text{Total program allocation} = \text{New or expanded program allocation}$$

Beginning with their third year of operation, new or expanded programs will be funded in the same manner as all other programs.

Subp. 7. **Reconciliation.** Allocations based on the ~~approved~~ number of FTEs each fiscal year, the quantifiable evaluation factors, the FAI data, and the nonemployment income data will be reconciled with the actual ~~number of FTEs numbers and data~~ at the end of the reconciliation period as provided in part 3300.2350, subpart 5. Adjustments to the allocations resulting from reconciliations, if any, will be made to allocations for the following state fiscal year. Any long-term sheltered workshop aggrieved by a decision of the commissioner under this subpart has the right to appeal using the procedures of part 3300.3050.

3300.2650 WITHDRAWAL OF ALLOCATED STATE FUNDS.

Subpart 1. **Criteria for withdrawal of allocated state funds.** The commissioner may withdraw allocated state funds from an individual extended employment program which has been accepted for state funding. A program is eligible to receive allocated state funds after it has fulfilled the certification requirements of part 3300.2150 and submitted an approved plan and budget. Allocated state funds ~~may~~ will be withdrawn when:

A. unencumbered but allocated state funds are not needed for the individual program to which they were allocated; or

B. an individual program is not being administered in accordance with its approved plan and budget as provided in Minnesota Statutes, section 129A.08, subdivision 2; or

C. an individual program, including a new or expanded individual program as provided in part 3300.2350, subpart 6, has not fully complied with the nonquantifiable evaluation factors found in part 3300.2350, subpart 2, as established by audit; or

D. an individual program, including a new or expanded individual program as provided in part 3300.2350, subpart 6, which has been placed on funding probation, has failed to meet the applicable minimum standard of effectiveness in part 3300.2350, subpart 4, as established by audit for three continuous years following the onset of probation; or

Subp. 3. **Right of appeal.** Any long-term sheltered workshop, including a new entity or existing long-term sheltered workshop operating an extended employment program under a provisional certificate, has the right to appeal the commissioner's withdrawal of allocated state funds from any of its individual programs. The appeal procedure is provided for in part 3300.3050.

Subp. 5. **Reallocation.** Withdrawn funds will be reallocated by the commissioner whenever possible. The commissioner will reallocate by increasing the number of ~~approved~~ full-time equivalents for extended employment programs capable of serving additional persons.

3300.3050 APPEAL PROCEDURE.

Subpart 1. **Scope.** The procedure in this part governs all appeals initiated by an aggrieved party having a right of appeal under part 3300.2650, subpart 3, or 3300.2550, subpart 6 or 7.

Pollution Control Agency

Adopted Permanent Rules Relating to Acid Deposition Control

The rules proposed and published at *State Register*, Volume 10, Number 25, pages 1354-1357, December 16, 1985 (10 S.R. 1354) are adopted with the following modifications:

Rules as Adopted

7005.4010 DEFINITIONS.

Subp. 2. **Electric utility.** “Electric utility” means persons, corporations, or other legal entities, their lessees, trustees, and receivers operating, maintaining, or controlling in Minnesota facilities used for the generation of electricity.

Subp. 3. **Offsets.** “Offsets” means any documented reductions in actual emissions of sulfur dioxide that are legally enforceable.

Subp. 4. **Reasonably available control technology (RACT).** “Reasonably available control technology” (RACT) means the lowest emission limit that a particular source is capable of meeting by the application of control technology that is reasonably available considering technological and economic feasibility.

Subp. 3 5. **Sensitive areas.** “Sensitive areas” means the areas listed by the agency pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, section 116.44 because the agency has determined these areas contain natural resources sensitive to the impacts of acid deposition.

KEY: PROPOSED RULES SECTION — Underlining indicates additions to existing rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from existing rule language. If a proposed rule is totally new, it is designated “all new material.” **ADOPTED RULES SECTION** — Underlining indicates additions to proposed rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from proposed rule language.

ADOPTED RULES

7005.4050 ACID DEPOSITION CONTROL REQUIREMENTS IN MINNESOTA.

Subpart 1. **Specific Emission limitations.** The owners and operators listed below may not emit from their emission facilities within Minnesota total emissions of sulfur dioxide in excess of the amount of emissions listed below. These limitations shall apply beginning January 1, 1990.

Owner/Operator	Sulfur Dioxide Emissions
Northern States Power Company	91,000 tons per year
Minnesota Power Company	39,000 tons per year

Any electric utility whose electric generating facilities located in Minnesota have a total combined net generating capacity greater than 1,000 megawatts may not emit from the emission facilities which it owns, operates, maintains, or controls in Minnesota total emissions of sulfur dioxide in excess of 130 percent of the number of tons of sulfur dioxide emitted from the electric utility's emissions facilities in 1984. This limitation shall apply beginning January 1, 1990. The determination as to the number of tons emitted by an electric utility's emission facilities shall be made by the director based on emission information obtained from the electric utility pursuant to Minnesota Rules, part 7005.1870.

Subp. 2. **Offsets required.** In the event that an owner or operator listed electric utility described in subpart 1 intends to increase emissions of sulfur dioxide from its emission facilities in Minnesota after January 1, 1990, beyond the limitations specified in subpart 1, such owner or operator the electric utility shall obtain sulfur dioxide emission offsets equal to the amount to be emitted in excess of the limitation specified.

Subp. 3. **Transfer requiring reduced emissions.** In the event of the sale or other transfer of ownership of If any of the emission facilities facility owned by Northern States Power Company on July 1, 1985, or of any of the emission facilities owned by Minnesota Power Company an electric utility described in subpart 1 on July 1, 1985, is sold or transferred to any person other than another electric utility described in subpart 1, and if the transfer results in the operation of the transferred emission facility by a person other than the seller, the amount of sulfur dioxide emissions allowed by Northern States Power Company or Minnesota Power Company the seller under subpart 1 shall be reduced by the amount of sulfur dioxide emissions emitted by the transferred emission facility in 1984 or the maximum SO₂ emissions allowed under the permit issued to the new owner or operator whichever is greater. If any emission facility owned by an electric utility described in subpart 1 on July 1, 1985, is sold or transferred to another electric utility described in subpart 1, and if the transfer results in the operation of the transferred emission facility by a person other than the seller, the amount of sulfur dioxide emissions allowed by the seller under subpart 1 shall be reduced by the maximum amount of sulfur dioxide emissions allowed under the permit issued to the new operator, and the amount of emissions allowed by the buyer under subpart 1 shall be increased by the maximum amount of sulfur dioxide emissions allowed under the permit issued to the new operator.

Subp. 5. ~~King facility limitation~~ **Requirement for application of reasonably available control technology.** On and after January 1, 1990, the owner or operator of the ~~Allen S. King~~ any electric generating facility that contains indirect heating equipment with a rated heat input of greater than 5,000 million BTU per hour shall ~~limit the emissions of~~ reduce sulfur dioxide from emissions at the facility to an annual average of 1.2 pounds per million BTU a level consistent with RACT.

Subp. 6. **Boswell facility limitation.** On and after January 1, 1990, the owner or operator of the Clay Boswell electric generating facility, units 1 through 4, shall limit the emissions of sulfur dioxide from the facility to an annual average of 0.75 pounds per million BTU.

Subp. 7. **1994 recommendations required.** On or before February 1, 1992, the director shall make a recommendation to the agency as to what, if any, additional regulatory requirements need to be imposed on emission facilities in Minnesota in order to maintain or achieve a statewide sulfur dioxide emission limitation of 194,000 tons per year on and after January 1, 1994.

OFFICIAL NOTICES

Pursuant to the provisions of Minn. Stat. § 15.0412, subd. 6, an agency, in preparing proposed rules, may seek information or opinion from sources outside the agency. Notices of intent to solicit outside opinion must be published in the *State Register* and all interested persons afforded the opportunity to submit data or views on the subject, either orally or in writing.

The *State Register* also publishes other official notices of state agencies, notices of meetings, and matters of public interest.

Department of Energy and Economic Development Business Financial Management Division

Tax Exempt Financing Issuance Authority

Notice of Availability

Pursuant to Minn. Laws 1986, Ch. 465, Article 1, Section 22

The Department gives notice that the amounts of tax exempt financing issuance authority available to qualified issuers as of August 25, 1986, is as follows:

Competitive Pool (Existing Law)

Pursuant to Minn. Laws 1986, Ch. 465, Article 1, Section 13

Total Pool Available (Priority to Manufacturing Projects)	\$295,471,015.
For:	
Pollution Control/Waste Management Projects	\$ 49,564,560.
Commercial Redevelopment Projects	\$106,731,195.

Competitive Pool (Federal Volume Limitation Act)

Pursuant to Minn. Laws 1986, Ch. 465, Article 1, Section 19

Total Pool Available (Priority to a-General Obligation Projects, b-Manufacturing Projects)	\$264,834,452.
For:	
Pollution Control/Waste Management Projects	\$ 59,856,247.
Commercial Redevelopment/Multifamily Housing Projects	\$ 82,301,647.

Qualified 501(c)(3) Bond Pool (Federal Volume Limitation Act)

Pursuant to Minn. Laws 1986, Ch. 465, Article 1, Section 20

Total Pool Available	\$ 31,865,000.
----------------------	----------------

Pursuant to Minn. Laws 1986, Ch. 465, Article 1, Section 13, Subd. 2, Section 19, Subd. 2, Section 20, Subd. 3, and Section 21, Subd. 2, issuers requesting allocations of issuance authority must submit applications, any applicable deposit and any other supporting documents required. Application forms are available from the Department upon request.

Department of Human Services Long Term Care Management Division

End of Solicitation Period for Comment Concerning Proposed Amendments to the Permanent Rules of the State Department of Human Services Governing the Determination of Payment Rates for Nursing Homes Participating in the Medical Assistance Program, Parts 9549.0010 to 9549.0080 (Permanent Rule 50)

Notice is hereby given that the comment period for the notice of intent to solicit outside opinion concerning proposed amendments to the permanent rules of the Department of Human Services governing the determination of payment rates for nursing homes

KEY: PROPOSED RULES SECTION — Underlining indicates additions to existing rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from existing rule language. If a proposed rule is totally new, it is designated "all new material." **ADOPTED RULES SECTION** — Underlining indicates additions to proposed rule language. ~~Strike outs~~ indicate deletions from proposed rule language.

OFFICIAL NOTICES

participating in the medical assistance program, parts 9549.0010 to 9549.0080 (permanent rule 50) published in the *State Register* on July 14, 1986, will end on September 5, 1986.

Questions concerning the comment period may be addressed to:

Jane Delage
Rules Unit
4th Floor, Centennial Building
St. Paul, Minnesota 55155
Telephone: 612/297-4302

Department of Revenue Special Taxes Division

Outside Opinion Sought Regarding Proposed Rules Governing the Ethanol Development Fund

Notice is hereby given that the Minnesota Department of Revenue is seeking information or opinions from sources outside the agency in preparing to promulgate rules governing the administration of the Ethanol Development Fund. The promulgation of these rules is authorized by M.S. 41.09, subd. 4.

Interested persons or groups may submit written statements of information. Statements will be accepted until September 30, 1986, and should be sent to:

Gregory J. Heck
Minnesota Department of Revenue
Legal and Legislative Affairs Division
P.O. Box 64446
St. Paul, Minnesota 55164

Any written material shall become part of the record in the event a rule is proposed and a public hearing is held.

21 August 1986

Office of the Secretary of State

Notice of Vacancies in Multi-Member State Agencies

Notice is hereby given to the public that vacancies have occurred in multi-member state agencies, pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 15.0597, subd. 4. Application forms may be obtained at the Office of the Secretary of State, 180 State Office Building, St. Paul 55155-1299; (612)296-2805. Application deadline is September 23, 1986.

ADVISORY COUNCIL ON THE MINNESOTA STATE ACADEMY FOR THE DEAF AND MINNESOTA STATE ACADEMY FOR THE BLIND has 1 vacancy open for a member. Preference will be given to applicants who reside in Congressional Districts #3, 6, 7 and 8. The council shall advise the Board of Education on policies pertaining to the control, management, and administration of these academies. Members shall be representative of the various geographic regions of the state. All members shall have knowledge, experience and interest in the problems of visually disabled or hearing impaired children. Members are appointed by the Board of Education. Members receive \$35 per diem. For specific information contact the Advisory Council on the Minnesota State Academy for the Deaf and Minnesota State Academy for the Blind, Wade M. Karli, P.O. Box 308, Faribault 55021; (507)332-3363.

COMPENSATION COUNCIL has 8 vacancies open immediately for members (one from each congressional district of whom no more than four may belong to the same political party). The council is created each even numbered year to assist the legislature in establishing the compensation of constitutional officers, members of the legislature, justices of the supreme court and judges of the court of appeals, district court, county court and county municipal courts. The Council will be appointed by October 1. Members are appointed by the Governor. members receive \$35 per diem. For specific information contact the Compensation Council, Rachel Wobschall, 130 Capitol, St. Paul 55155; (612)296-0057.

BOARD FOR COMMUNITY COLLEGES has 1 vacancy open for a person who is a community college student or who has been a student within one year of appointment. The board sets rules and policies for management of community college system. Members are appointed by the Governor and confirmed by the Senate. Members must file with the Ethical Practices Board.

Bimonthly meetings alternate between St. Paul and various community college campuses. For specific information contact the Board for Community Colleges, 203 Capitol Square Bldg., St. Paul 55101; (612)296-3356.

MEDICAL SERVICES REVIEW BOARD has 1 vacancy open for an alternate member for a specialty neurologist-physician. The board advises the department on medical matters relating to workers compensation and hears appeals on decisions of the department. Members are appointed by the Commissioner of Labor and Industry. Members receive \$35 per diem plus expenses. Members must file with the Ethical Practices Board. For specific information contact the Medical Services Review Board, Dept. of Labor and Industry, Office of Public Affairs, 444 Lafayette Rd., St. Paul 55101; (612)297-4373.

Board of Teaching

Notice of Intent to Solicit Outside Opinion Concerning Proposed Rules Relating to the Licensure of School Librarians, Teachers of Business Education, Teachers of Computer Science, and Teachers of Early Childhood/Family Education; Continuing Education; Provisional Licensure; and Teacher Examinations

Notice is hereby given that the Board of Teaching is seeking information or opinions from sources outside the Board in preparing to propose the adoption and/or amendment of rules governing the licensure of School Librarians, Teachers of Business Education, Teachers of Computer Science, and Teachers of Early Childhood/Family Education; Continuing Education; Provisional Licensure; and Teacher Examinations. Any interested persons may submit data or views on these subjects in writing or orally to:

Kenneth L. Peatross
Minnesota Board of Teaching
608 Capitol Square Building
550 Cedar Street
St. Paul, Minnesota 55101
(612) 296-2415

Any written material received by the Board shall become part of the hearing record in the event that the rules governing these subjects are promulgated.

Dated: 22 August 1986

Kenneth L. Peatross, Executive Secretary
Minnesota Board of Teaching

Department of Transportation Program Management Division

Notice of Intent to Solicit Outside Opinion Regarding Rules and the Definitions of "Significant Centers of Population and Commerce" and "Temporary Emergency Service"

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT that State Department of Transportation (Mn/DOT) is seeking information and opinions from sources outside the agency in preparing proposed rules to define "significant centers of population and commerce" and "temporary emergency service". The adoption of rules is authorized by Minnesota Statutes, section 169.832, subdivision 13 (c) (Laws 1986, Chapter 398, Article 13, Section 10) which requires the Commissioner to adopt rules which define "significant centers of population and commerce" and "temporary emergency service" to assist in determining which state trunk highways will serve as market artery routes.

Minnesota Statutes, section 169.832, subdivision 13 identifies a market artery as "a trunk highway or segment thereof that:

- (i) connects significant centers of population or commerce;
- (ii) connects highways described in clause (i);
- (iii) provides access to a transportation terminal; or
- (iv) provides temporary emergency service to a particular shipping or receiving point on a market artery."

State trunk highways which are determined to be market artery routes are intended to be unrestricted for maximum allowable vehicle weights. Minnesota Statutes, section 169.832, subdivision 13 specifies that the Commissioner may impose seasonal load

OFFICIAL NOTICES

restrictions on a market artery only after providing advance notice of weight restrictions on market artery routes to certain committees of the state House of Representatives and Senate. Minnesota Statutes, section 169.832, subdivision 13 also specifies that the Commissioner shall provide with each notice a plan to improve the market artery within the next three years so that seasonal load restrictions will not be necessary on it.

An interim definition of "significant centers of population and commerce" has been provided in the statute. Until rules are effective, "significant centers of population and commerce" means "all home rule charter or statutory cities that had total retail sales of at least \$50,000,000 as reported in the 1982 Census of Retail Trade of the United States Department of Commerce."

These rules may have an effect on the transportation activities of small businesses. Minnesota Statutes, section 14.115 states that small business means "a business entity, including its affiliates, that (a) is independently owned and operated; (b) is not dominant in its field; and (c) employs fewer than 50 full-time employees or has gross annual sales of less than \$4,000,000." Trunk highways which are determined to be market arteries will represent the principal access routes for the shipment of commodities to and from geographic areas of supply and demand in Minnesota. As such, small businesses located on state trunk highway market artery routes may achieve some shipping advantage.

Promulgation of these rules will not result in the imposition of agency fees as described in Minnesota Statutes, section 16A.128. The rules will not require the expenditure of public monies by local public bodies as defined in Minnesota Statutes, section 14.11, subdivision 1. Additionally, the rules will not result in mandated costs for local agencies or school districts described in Minnesota Statutes, section 3.982.

The State Department of Transportation requests information and comments concerning the subject matter of these rules. Interested or affected persons or groups may submit statements of information or comments orally or in writing. Written statements should be addressed to: Jonette Kreideweis, Highway Planning Unit, Room 807, Transportation Building, St. Paul, Minnesota, 55155.

Oral statements will be received during regular business hours over the telephone at (612) 296-8477. In addition, at least four public meetings will be held in various parts of the state prior to preparing the final draft of the rule. Notice of these public meetings will be published in the *State Register*.

All statements of information and comment shall be accepted until December 15, 1986. Any written material received by the State Department of Transportation will become part of the record in the event that the rules are adopted.

Dated: 25 August 1986

Richard P. Braun, Commissioner
Minnesota Department of Transportation

STATE CONTRACTS

Pursuant to the provisions of Minn. Stat. § 16.098, subd. 3, an agency must make reasonable effort to publicize the availability of any consultant services contract or professional and technical services contract which has an estimated cost of over \$2,000.

Department of Administration procedures require that notice of any consultant services contract or professional and technical services contract which has an estimated cost of over \$10,000 be printed in the *State Register*. These procedures also require that the following information be included in the notice: name of contact person, agency name and address, description of project and tasks, cost estimate, and completed contract proposal. Certain quasi-state agencies are exempted from some of the provisions of this statute.

Commodities contracts with an estimated value of \$5,000 or more are listed under the Procurement Division, Department of Administration. All bids are open for 7-10 days before bidding deadline. For bid specifics, time lines, and other general information, contact the appropriate buyers by calling 296-6152. If the appropriate buyer is not available, contact Harvey Leach or Barbara Jolly at 296-3779.

Department of Administration—Procurement Division

Contracts and Requisitions Open for Bid

Call 296-6152 for Referral to Specific Buyers.

Commodity for Bid	Bid Closing Date at 2 pm	Department or Division	Delivery Point	Requisition #
Valves	September 2, 1986	Various	Various	Price-Contract
Snow Removal	September 3, 1986	Lakewood Community College	White Bear Lake	27-154-45466

STATE CONTRACTS

Commodity for Bid	Bid Closing Date at 2 pm	Department or Division	Delivery Point	Requisition #
Gas Salt Kiln—Rebid	September 3, 1986	State University	Bemidji	26-070-12063
Snow Removal Capitol Complex	September 3, 1986	Administration— Plant Management	Plant Management	Price-Contract
Developer/Toner—Rebid	September 3, 1986	Administration— Information Management	St. Paul	02-410-51380
Virginia Metal Partitions—Rebid	September 3, 1986	Economic Security	Economic Security	21-200-13535
Rubbish Removal—Rebid	September 3, 1986	Lakewood Community College	White Bear Lake	27-154-46569-2
VHF Radio Communications Equipment—Rebid	September 3, 1986	Correctional Facility	Shakopee	02-310-14941
Used Cad System	September 3, 1986	Correctional Facility	Stillwater	78-620-00037
Snow Removal Contract	September 4, 1986	Anoka Ramsey Community College	Anoka	27-152-46275- Price-Contract
Continuous Data Processing Forms—Carbon Interleaved and One Part	September 4, 1986	Various	Various	Price-Contract
Geodetic Survey Disk	September 4, 1986	Transportation	St. Paul	79-000-70818
Liquid Petroleum Gas	September 5, 1986	Various	Various	Sch.-93A-Rebid
Color Coded Folders	September 5, 1986	Labor & Industry	St. Paul	42-203-10018
Welding Equip.	September 5, 1986	Correctional Facility	Stillwater	78-620-00046
Display Cubes	September 8, 1986	State University	Bemidji	26-070-12122
Cotton for Mattresses	September 8, 1986	Correctional Facility	St. Cloud	78-830-08340
Repair Aircraft Mechanical Body	September 8, 1986	Public Safety	St. Paul	07-500-39531
Wood Office Furniture	September 8, 1986	Pollution Control	St. Paul	02-310-15015
Computer Equip.	September 8, 1986	Finance—Central Payroll	St. Paul	10-100-02742
Photo Supplies	September 12, 1986	State University	Bemidji	26-070-12042- Rebid
Drafting Tables	September 8, 1986	Community College	Hibbing	27-143-43024
Terminals	September 8, 1986	Transportation	St. Paul	79-000-70795

**Department of Energy and Economic Development
Division of Science and Technology
Office of Software Technology Development**

Notice of Request for Proposals for Agency to Provide Evaluation and Advisory Services

Notice is hereby given that the Office of Software Technology Development, Minnesota Department of Energy and Economic Development (DEED) requires the services of a qualified agency with established expertise to provide necessary evaluation and advisory services relating to the Technology Product Investment Program.

The Technology Product Investment Program was implemented to provide low-interest loans to eligible applicants for the development and marketing of technology-related products that exist as completed products, prototypes, or as conceptual product designs. Under the direction of the Office, the loan application process includes an evaluation analysis of the marketing and financial plans of applicant companies as well as a review of managerial strengths and weaknesses. It is anticipated that 6-10 reviews will be conducted by the Office this fiscal year. The awarded agency will also provide advisory (i.e., marketing, financial, technical advice) and referral services to software producers which have limited operating capital. Also, the agency will maintain a listing of software producers and their capabilities for referral purposes. Further, the agency will be responsible for the development and coordination of seminars and workshops to assist groups of software developers in common problem areas.

These activities will be conducted in the most effective and efficient manner possible. Therefore, due to the specific industry focus of the Technology Product Investment Program and the diverse types of services needed by loan applicants, it is recommended that RFP applicants have staffs with expertise in the following areas: research and evaluation, business services (i.e., legal, management and fiscal), quality assurance, market needs assessment and personnel development and supply. Also, due to the confidential nature of investment program applications, agency staffs must be without possible conflicts of interest. In addition, technical consultation services will be provided over a broad range of application fields (i.e., education, agriculture, medical) as well as the computer technology field. Special consideration will be given to those agencies which have access to these fields in terms of technical support.

The estimated fee range for this project is \$22,000 to \$28,000. Firms desiring consideration should request a copy of the Request for Proposals (RFP) Statement of Work or direct inquiries to:

Dr. Rosemary T. Fruehling, Director
Office of Software Technology Development
Minnesota Department of Energy and Economic Development
900 American Center Building
150 East Kellogg Boulevard
St. Paul, MN 55101

The deadline for submission of proposals will be 4:30 p.m. on September 22, 1986.

Dated: 1 September 1986

Rosemary T. Fruehling

**Department of Energy and Economic Development
Division of Science and Technology
Office of Software Technology**

Notice of Request for Proposals for Education and Training/Industry/Software Development Consultant

Notice is hereby given that the Office of Software Technology Development (OSTD), Minnesota Department of Energy and Economic Development (DEED) requires the services of a qualified, part-time consultant knowledgeable about education and training programs as they relate to the computer software development industry in Minnesota. This position is available from October, 1986 through June 30, 1987.

In an effort to realize support and implementation of the "Center for the Development of the Software Industry," technical assistance is required by the OSTD to further refine objectives and strategies. Responsibilities of the consultant will include providing

leadership in further developing the Center concept. The primary purposes of the industry-based concept include providing industry-specific services to the Minnesota software industry, creating more direct industry involvement and retaining a close relationship with the educational community. Services to the software industry available through the "Center for the Development of the Software Industry" could include the following:

1. The Center will use available business and technical services to help software companies solve problems that would otherwise hinder their success; and the Center staff will use an up-to-date data bank to link qualified service providers to companies and individuals in need of these services.

2. The Center will use/develop educational programs to keep the industry and the consumer knowledgeable and qualified in using and/or developing software; and the Center staff will work with educational institutions to develop and provide the industry-specific educational seminars, forums and workshops.

3. The Center will identify sources for research or quality control assistance available in Minnesota post-secondary institutions; and the Center staff will assist individuals and companies to gain easy access to these services.

4. The Center will promote markets for the Minnesota software industry within the state, nationally and internationally; and the Center staff, with assistance from the software industry, will develop and carry out the promotional plans.

This activity will be conducted in the most effective and efficient manner possible. Therefore, due to the education and training focus of this project, it is recommended that the applicant have a thorough background in the field of curriculum and school administration at the post-secondary (or beyond) level. The estimated fee range for this project is \$22,000 to \$26,000. Individuals desiring consideration should request a copy of the Request for Proposals (RFP) Statement of Work or direct inquiries to:

Dr. Rosemary T. Frjuehling, Director
Office of Software Technology Development
Minnesota Department of Energy and Economic Development
900 American Center Building
150 East Kellogg Boulevard
St. Paul, MN 55101

The deadline for submission of proposals will be 4:30 p.m. on September 22, 1986.

Dated: 1 September 1986

Department of Human Services

Notice of Request for Proposal for the Development, Implementation, and Operation of Payment Error Prone Profiles for Health Care Providers

Notice is hereby given that the Health Care Programs Division, Department of Human Services, is seeking proposals concerning the development of error prone profiles for health care providers and the use of these profiles to screen health care claims submitted to the Department by enrolled providers in the Medical Assistance and General Assistance Medical Care programs.

This Request for Proposal does not obligate the State to complete the project and the State reserves the right to cancel the solicitation if it is considered to be in its best interest.

I. Scope of Project:

To develop, implement, and operate a medical claims error prone profile system for the Medical Assistance and General Assistance Medical Care programs.

II. Objectives:

To prevent erroneous payments of medical claims and/or recoup erroneous payments previously made.

III. Project Tasks:

1. Design error prone profile system.
 - a. Error prone profile system must be compatible with existing Medicaid Management Information System.
 - b. Error prone profile system must not duplicate functions of existing edits or screens in the Medicaid Management Information System nor any of the functions of the Surveillance and Utilization Review Subsystem.
2. Implement the error prone profile system.
3. Operate the error prone profile system.

STATE CONTRACTS

Responder should propose additional tasks or activities if they will substantially improve the results of the project.

IV. Department Contacts:

Robert Baird, Director, Health Care Programs, 444 Lafayette Road, St. Paul, MN.

V. Submission of Proposals:

All proposals must be received by 4:00 p.m., September 26, 1986. Late proposals will not be accepted. Responder shall submit four copies of the proposal. Proposals are to be sealed in mailing envelopes or packages with responder's name and address clearly written on the outside. Each copy of the proposal must be signed by an authorized representative of the responder.

VI. Project Costs:

The Department has estimated that the annual cost of this project shall not exceed \$400,000.00. It is the Department's intent to pay for this project on a contingency basis. Each proposal shall specify the percentage of expected savings it is willing to accept as reimbursement for this project.

VII. Proposal Contents:

The following will be considered minimum contents of the proposal.

1. Statements which show or demonstrate the responder's understanding of the nature of the project.
2. Outline of responder's background and experience with particular emphasis on local, state, and federal government work. Identify personnel to conduct the project and detail their training and work experience. No change in personnel assigned to the project will be permitted without the approval of the state project director/manager.
3. Responders will prepare a detailed work plan which will identify the major tasks to be accomplished and be used as a scheduling and managing tool.
4. Identify the Department's participation in the project as well as any other service to be provided by the Department.

VIII. Evaluation

All proposals received by the deadline will be evaluated by representatives of the Department of Human Services. Factors upon which proposals will be judged include, but are not limited to the following:

1. Expressed understanding of the project.
2. Project work plan.
3. Cost to the Department.
4. Qualification of both company and personnel. Experience of personnel will be given greater weight than that of the firm.

Evaluation and selection will be completed by October 24, 1986. Results will be sent immediately by mail to all responders.

STATE GRANTS

In addition to requests by state agencies for technical/professional services (published in the State Contracts section), the *State Register* also publishes notices about grant funds available through any agency or branch of state government. Although some grant programs specifically require printing in a statewide publication such as the *State Register*, there is no requirement for publication in the *State Register* itself.

Agencies are encouraged to publish grant notices, and to provide financial estimates as well as sufficient time for interested parties to respond.

Bureau of Mediation Services

Applications Accepted for Funding Under the Minnesota Area Labor-Management Committee Program

The Bureau of Mediation Services will begin accepting applications for funding of new or existing Area Labor-Management Committee programs on September 2, 1986, pursuant to Minn. Stat. 179.81-85 (1985).

Persons interested in applying for such funds may secure an application form and program policies by requesting them in writing from:

Paul W. Goldberg, Director
Bureau of Mediation Services
205 Aurora Avenue
St. Paul, Minnesota 55103

Applications for funding during fiscal year 1987 will be accepted until October 15, 1986.

Paul W. Goldberg
Director

SUPREME COURT DECISIONS

Decisions Filed Friday 22 August 1986

Compiled by Wayne O. Tschimperle, Clerk

C9-85-2381 State of Minnesota, petitioner, Appellant, v. Jean Lambert. Court of Appeals.

Legislation is not needed for trial courts to adopt advisory, nonbinding local sentencing guidelines for misdemeanor and gross misdemeanor cases.

Reversed and sentence reinstated. Amdahl, C.J.

DOCUMENTS DIVISION

Publications, Services, Subscriptions

Order Form on Back

For Information, Call 297-3000

NEW PUBLICATIONS:

Physicians Directory 1985. Names and addresses in alphabetical order of licensed chiropractors, doctors of medicine and osteopaths, optometrists, podiatrists and registered physical therapists. Code #1-1. \$15.00.

Health Care Facilities Directory 1986. Contains a list of hospitals and related institutions licensed and/or certified in Minnesota. Alphabetical listing by county. Includes town and facility name, ownership, capacity, available services, address, phone number, and director's name. Code #1-89. \$15.00.

OTHER PUBLICATIONS:

Legislative District Maps. A six-map set of Minnesota Legislative and U.S. Congressional Districts. Shows boundaries since redistricting. (3 maps 17" x 22", 1 map 25" x 29", 2 maps 28" x 40"). Sent to you in a sturdy mailing tube. Code #7-7. \$4.95.

MN Hazardous Waste Rules (as in effect 2-10-86). MN Rules Chapter 7045 and 7046. The rules governing the permits, storage, production and shipment of Hazardous Waste. Code #3-71. \$13.50.

Occupational Safety and Health Rules (as in effect 1-6-86). Chapters 5205-5206, 5210, 5215. State standards for safe working conditions including: personal protective equipment, walking and working surfaces, illumination and ventilation. 84 pp. Code #3-18. \$9.00.

The Medical Alley Directory. Reach the decision-makers without delay at more than 300 medical and bio-tech companies and healthcare delivery organizations. Entries include major products and/or services, company background, special interests, trade name(s), major activities, and addresses and phone numbers. (Code #40-7. \$109.00)

The following two publications are discounted more than 40%.

Education Laws 1984. A complete extract from the 1984 Minnesota Statutes of the empowering legislation relating to public schools. Code #2-83. ~~\$16.00~~ reduced to \$9.00.

Education Laws 1985 Supplement. The 1986 Education Laws (with changes incorporated from the 1986 Legislative Session) will not be available until the Winter of 1986. Code #2-83s1. ~~\$12.50~~ reduced to \$7.00.

* **Minnesota Laws 1986.** All laws passed in the Regular and Special Sessions. Code #18-4. \$23.00, plus \$1.38 tax.

* **Minnesota Rules 1985.** 10-volume set. Code #18-200. Single volumes: \$13.00 plus 78¢ tax; Full set: \$125.00 plus \$7.50 tax.

* **Minnesota Rules 1986 Supplement Number 1.** Code #18-200A. \$15.00 + 90¢ tax.

State Register Index. Contains cumulative finding aids to Volume 9 of the *State Register*, including Minnesota Rules Amendments and Additions. Executive Orders list & index. Agency & Subject Matter indices. Code #13-9 SR INDEX. \$5.00.

SUBSCRIPTIONS:

State Register. Minnesota's official weekly publication for agency rules and notices, executive orders of the Governor, state contracts, Supreme Court Calendar, Supreme Court and Tax Court Decisions. Annual subscription \$130; Trial Subscription (13 weeks) \$40.00; Single copies \$3.50.

Workers Compensation Decisions. Volume 38. Selected landmark decisions of the Worker's Compensation Court of Appeals. Annual subscription, quarterly updates. \$89.50.

SERVICES:

Mailing Lists. Lists of Minnesota licensed professionals and permit holders. Write or call (612) 297-2552 for a free mailing list catalog which contains available lists, selections, formats, pricing and ordering information.

Minnesota's Seasons. Catalog of lake maps, fishing guides, bikeway maps, cookbooks, travel guides, and more. Free.

Minnesota State Documents Center 1986 Catalog. Contains list of publications available through Minnesota Documents Center. Free.

State Register Binder. Durable 3½ inches, forest green binders imprinted with the *State Register* logo. \$6.50 plus 39¢ tax.

* These publications require no postage and handling fees